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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

FTEREREEENRR DN

I would like to extend my sincere thanks to all of you for supporting
Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited (the “Company”). On
behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company, |
am pleased to present you with the audited financial results of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is engaged in electronic commerce (“e-Commerce”)
business through cross-border business-to-business (“B2B”)
electronic distribution platforms and mobile applications sourcing,
importing and channeling authentic goods from suppliers abroad
and then distributing and reselling such goods to domestic
retailers and consumers in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), and other general trading businesses. The Group is also
an independent axle component provider for the PRC’s medium
duty truck (“MDT”) and heavy duty truck (“HDT”) aftermarket and
also an independent axle assembly provider for the PRC’'s MDT
and HDT original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs”) market.

Due to the continued deterioration of the business environment
of the axle market, the demand for axle assemblies has declined
significantly. In addition, as a result of continued unstable political
environment in the Commonwealth of Independent States,
there has also been great uncertainty relating to the sales of
train and railway components. In view of these circumstances,
on 2 February 2016, the Group entered into a conditional
agreement to sell the entire interest in FIHE5LEBAR AT
(Kaifeng Changfeng Axle Co., Ltd.*) (“Kaifeng Changfeng”) and
its subsidiary (together the “Kaifeng Changfeng Group”), which
were engaged in the business of axle assemblies and railway
components, and certain of the Group’s receivables due from
the Kaifeng Changfeng Group, at a total cash consideration of
RMB4,000, details of which are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 2 February 2016 and the circular dated 30
March 2016. The disposal was completed on 20 May 2016.

The Group has always been seeking investment opportunities
with potential growth and an effective platform for e-Commerce
and internet finance industry which will enhance our market image
and create commercial synergies with our existing e-Commerce
business.

In the second half of 2016, the formation of joint ventures (the
“Formation of JVs”), more specifically described below and in
the relevant announcements of the Company referred to below,
involves the investment by the Company, China Mobile (Hong
Kong) Group Limited, Bank of China Group Investment Limited,
CCB International (Holdings) Limited, and China UnionPay
Merchant Services Company Limited (which are leading
enterprises in their respective industries) into three joint venture
companies which form part of the Group. The objective is to set
up a membership point alliance, to establish a “Point-Connect”
point reward system and platform, and to realise points from
different industries for conversion to alliance points in the platform
for operation.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

On 22 June 2016, the Company entered into an agreement
with Chance Talent Management Limited (“Chance Talent”),
an indirectly and wholly-owned subsidiary of CCB International
(Holdings) Limited, and Treasure Ease Holdings Limited (“Treasure
Ease”). Pursuant to the agreement, the Company and Chance
Talent conditionally agreed to subscribe for shares in Treasure
Ease and to cooperate in the development of the business
of “Point-Connect” point reward system and platform. The
completion of the initial subscription and additional subscription
took place on 27 June 2016 and 25 January 2017 respectively
pursuant to the terms of the aforesaid agreement and Treasure
Ease became a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
which is held as to 50.1% by the Company and 49.9% by Chance
Talent. For further details of these transactions, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 22 June 2016, 25 July
2016 and 13 September 2016.

On 30 August 2016, Treasure Ease entered into an agreement
with Easylink Payment Network (Hong Kong) Company Limited
(“Easylink”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of China UnionPay
Merchant Services Company Limited (“China UnionPay”). Pursuant
to the agreement, Treasure Ease and Easylink have agreed to
subscribe for shares in a company to be incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, such company has subsequently
been incorporated on 1 September 2016 under the name of
Pointsea Holdings Company Limited (“Pointsea Holdings”), to
cooperate in the development of the business including the
establishment of a system and platform for online and offline sales
of commodity products. The completion of the initial subscription
took place on 1 September 2016 pursuant to the terms of
the agreement and Pointsea Holdings became a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company which is held as to 80% by
Treasure Ease and 20% by Easylink. Treasure Ease and Easylink
conditionally agreed to further subscribe for additional shares in
Pointsea Holding at the subscription price of RMB79,999,920
and RMB19,999,980 respectively, subject to the terms of the
agreement. For further details of these transactions, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 30 August 2016.

On 29 November 2016, Pointsea Holdings entered into an
agreement with Extra Step Investments Limited (“Extra Step”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Mobile (Hong Kong) Group
Limited and Joy Empire Holdings Limited (“Joy Empire”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Bank of China Group Investment Limited.
Pursuant to the agreement, Pointsea Holdings, Extra Step and
Joy Empire have conditionally agreed to subscribe for shares in a
company to be incorporated in Cayman Islands, such company
has subsequently been incorporated on 10 January 2017
under the name of Pointsea Company Limited (“Pointsea”). It is
contemplated that an investor which will be a famous aviation
enterprise, may join as a new party to the agreement. Pointsea is
currently a wholly owned subsidiary of Pointsea Holdings. Upon
completion of the additional subscription, Pointsea will be held as
to 50% by Pointsea Holdings. Please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 29 November 2016 and 7 December 2016
for details.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

FTEREREEENRR DN

On 3 October 2016, the Company granted a total of 80 million
options to subscribe for a total of 80 million shares of the
Company to certain eligible persons under the share option
scheme adopted on 28 June 2010. All the options granted were
fully accepted by grantees by end of October 2016. Details of
which are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 3
October 2016.

On 16 December 2016, the Company announced that a placing
of a maximum of 291,218,000 shares of the Company to placees
at the price of HK$1.98 per share (the “Placing”). 138,888,000
shares were placed to Taiping Trustees Limited, a subsidiary of
China Taiping Insurance Group Limited, and 151,515,000 shares
were placed to Beijing Enterprises Real Estate (HK) Limited, a
subsidiary of Beijing Enterprises Group Company Limited, details
of which are disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated
16 December 2016, 22 December 2016 and 6 January 2017.

e-Commerce business

The Group has started the e-Commerce business since March
2015, initially through the operation of B2B platform. This B2B
mode is to set up a direct path between pre-identified overseas
suppliers, distributors and domestic retailers in the PRC. The
Group has commenced practical businesses with hundreds
of brand suppliers in Europe, covering thousands of brand
producers, and established strategic cooperation relationships
with famous brand groups. The Group has launched a business-
to-customer (“B2C”) e-Commerce platform since September 2015
in four main themes of product categories, namely affordable
luxury, nursery, cosmetics and health. The Company has
developed cooperation with well established partners in various
regions around the world. Besides, the Group has other trading
businesses.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue from
e-Commerce business segment amounted to approximately
RMB302.1 million (2015: approximately RMB43.2 million). The
total revenue from this segment accounted for approximately
78.4% (2015: approximately 25.3%) of the Group’s total revenue.

Axle business

The Group sells axle assemblies directly to OEMs in the PRC
on a made-to-order basis to match its customers’ specification
requirements. A small portion of axle components are occasionally
sold to other axle assembly providers. The Group is an
independent axle component provider for China’s MDT and HDT
aftermarket with diversified product offerings among independent
axle component providers in the PRC.

The axle components are sold to customers in the aftermarket
through its extensive sales, marketing and services network across
the PRC. For the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue from
the OEM market and aftermarket business segment amounted to
approximately RMB83.4 million (2015: approximately RMB127.2
million), representing a decrease of approximately 34.4% as
compared with 2015, and accounted for approximately 21.6%
(2015: approximately 74.7%) of the Group’s total revenue.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group recorded a consolidated revenue of approximately
RMB385.5 million (2015: approximately RMB170.4 million),
representing an increase of approximately 126.3% as compared
to 2015.

Revenue from the Group’s electronic commerce segment was
approximately RMB302.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: approximately RMB43.2 million), representing
approximately 78.4% (2015: approximately 25.3%) of the Group’s
total revenue.

Revenue from the Group’s axle business segment for the year
ended 31 December 2016 was diminishing as a result of the
continuing depressed business environment of this sector and the
significant price competition among competitors.

Gross loss

Gross loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted
to approximately RMB12.7 million, as compared with the gross
loss of approximately RMB159.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2015. The gross loss was mainly attributable to the
gross loss in the amount of approximately RMB7.2 million and
approximately RMB5.5 million generated from axle business and
e-Commerce business respectively.

Other income

Other income of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
amounted to approximately RMB22.8 million (2015: approximately
RMB9.5 million). This was mainly attributable to the disposal of
Kaifeng Changfeng Group on 20 May 2016.

Impairment losses

Impairment losses of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 amounted to approximately RMB33.4 million (2015:
approximately RMB312.3 million), mainly comprising impairment
loss of approximately RMB13.7 million (2015: approximately
RMB53.7 million) for property, plant and equipment and
approximately RMB18.2 million (2015: approximately RMB262.6
million) for trade and other receivables, due to the decline of the
Group’s axle business.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 decreased to approximately RMB26.8 million
(2015: approximately RMB45.5 million). The decrease was mainly
attributable to the disposal of Kaifeng Changfeng Group on 20 May
2016 and the tightened cost control in e-Commerce business.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year ended
31 December 2016 decreased to approximately RMB76.3
million (2015: approximately RMB86.4 million). The decrease
was mainly attributable to the disposal of Fujian Changfeng
Axle Manufacturing Co. Ltd and Kaifeng Changfeng Group in
November 2015 and May 2016, respectively.

ITEREREEEBNWR DN

g 3E)
A

REBIEBGEAVANARKEISSHEBT(ZT—RE  HAR
BA704BETT) BT —RFIGIE 126.3% °

AREBEFEBOTNEBE_Z—"F+_A=+—BILFEN
WABIARKESRAIBEL(ZE—RHF  HARKE4I32HE
TT)  EAREBBR AL 78.4% (—Z—HF : #125.3%) °

FEBEBEBAIBNBE_E—R"F+_A=T—BIFEHN
WAR D B0 R B R 1T M E B RB ARG RS E 2 AR
E BB o

ESY 5]

BE-Z—RE+-A=T—"RLFE EBRAOARK127H
B MEBE_T-—AFT_A=+T—BHILEFEREBHARYE
169.8 HET  EBEEHREREBLRETHEEBORELE
BOARBT2ABLTROARKESSBETMEK -

HAtA

HE_Z—AF+_A=Z+—HLEFE AEENHMBIRAEY
ARE228HEBIL(ZZ—AF : YARBEISHEL) - WHEE
AR - ANFREA - +tHHEHRHGLEBMRK -

WIEEE

REBREE-_Z—A"F+-_A=1+—HBIFENREBREY
ARESRAFETL( T —RF  HARE3123EHET) TEB
FEARNEEERER NRIEKNDE - BERLEREBEOA
REABTEBL(ZE—AF WARKESSTEETL) NESHRHE
W EREBEOARB182EETL(ZT—RF  HYARE
262.6 HEIT) °

HERDHX

HE_Z—AF+_A=Z+—HLLFE FAEENHESE LD HH
TRHAOEODARE68EET(ZE—HFE: YARKI5EHE
TL) e AL EEREANR T —AFRA-THHEHRTHLE
B K M58 3 B 1 7 B RSB AE B ©

THBAX

BET—RET-_A=+—HLFEAEENTERRASAD =
MARBT63BAEL(ZT—RF : HARKS6A4BET) ° 28
PEEHREARDHN - Z-AF+ AT RFRAHER
BELEREARLR RANG S SEME -

BERSBEEETRAT TR FEERS



Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

FTEREREEENRR DN

Finance costs

The Group incurred finance costs of approximately RMB85.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2016, which represented
approximately 22.1% (2015: approximately 28.6%) of its revenue.
The decrease in percentage to revenue in 2016 was mainly
due to the net effect of increase in revenue from approximately
RMB170.4 million in 2015 to approximately RMB385.5 million
in 2016, increase in finance charges on the secured notes and
convertible bonds amounting to approximately RMB17.4 million
and increase in changes in fair value on the derivative components
of convertible bonds amounting to approximately RMB15.4 million
in 2016.

Loss for financial guarantee contracts issued

Loss for financial guarantee contracts issued of approximately
RMB31.0 million was made for the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015: RMB Nil) which represent the maximum exposure as of 31
December 2016 arising from the guarantees for bank loans drawn
by a previous subsidiary of the Group disposed of on 20 May
2016.

Taxation

Income tax credit of approximately RMB25.5 million was recorded
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: approximately
RMB16.3 million).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, cash and cash equivalents of the
Group was approximately RMB90.0 million (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB195.6 million). As compared to 2015, cash
and cash equivalents decreased by approximately RMB105.6
million, mainly due to net cash outflow from operating activities of
approximately RMB71.3 million (2015: approximately RMB45.1
million), net cash outflow from investing activities of approximately
RMB27.2 million (2015: net cash inflow of approximately
RMB57.4 million) and net cash outflow from financing activities
of approximately RMB13.6 million (2015: net cash inflow of
approximately RMB175.4 million).

On 16 December 2016, the Company made an announcement
in relation to the Placing. 138,888,000 shares of the Company
were placed to Taiping Trustees Limited, a subsidiary of China
Taiping Insurance Group Limited, and 151,515,000 shares of
the Company were placed to Beijing Enterprises Real Estate
(HK) Limited, a subsidiary of Beijing Enterprises Group Company
Limited. The proceeds of the Placing, net of transaction costs
were received on 6 January 2017.

As at 31 December 2016, net current liabilities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB137.8 million (31 December
2015: net current asset approximately RMB59.6 million). As at
31 December 2016, the current ratio (i.e. total current assets/
total current liabilities) of the Group was approximately 0.79 (31
December 2015: approximately 1.12).

Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2016, total assets of the Group were
approximately RMB733.8 million (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB776.1 million) and total liabilities were
approximately RMB647.2 million (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB704.0 million). The debt ratio as at 31
December 2016 (i.e. total liabilities/total assets) was 0.88 as
compared to 0.91 as at 31 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had total borrowings
(including bank and other loans, secured notes and convertible
bonds) of approximately RMB452.8 million (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB380.6 million). The gearing ratio (i.e. total
borrowing/total equity) was approximately 5.23 (31 December
2015: approximately 5.28).

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables of the Group as at 31 December
2016 were approximately RMB315.4 million (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB49.5 million). The increase in the balance was
mainly due to the proceeds receivable from the placement of new
shares during the year.

Inventories

The inventory balance of the Group as at 31 December 2016
was approximately RMB29.3 million (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB63.6 million). The stock turnover increased
from 2.62 times per year in 2015 to 8.58 times per year in 2016 as
the e-Commerce business require minimal level inventory.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables of the Group as at 31 December 2016
were approximately RMB159.5 million (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB150.9 million). The increase was mainly due to
increase in interest payable as at 31 December 2016.

Pledged assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has pledged assets
of approximately RMB107.1 million (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB52.4 million). The following assets and their
respective carrying values as at the end of the reporting period are
pledged to secure the Group’s bank and other loans.
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Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (31 December 2015: RMB Nil).

RAREME

REE-—RF+-A=+—H AEEITESAIAREBE(-F
—BF+ZA=+—H: AREBZR) -

SESEEMARAT T AEEERE a
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Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2016, the Group committed to inject RMB100
million in respect of investment in a company to be incorporated
under the Formation of JVs. Save as disclosed above, the Group
had no other contracted capital commitments which were not
provided in the financial statements (31 December 2015: RMB Nil).

Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 410 employees
(81 December 2015: 652 employees). For the year ended 31
December 2016, total staff costs were approximately RMB68.1
million (2015: approximately RMB78.6 million).

During the year, the Group also provided internal training, external
training and correspondence courses for its staff in order to
promote self improvement and enhancement of skills relevant
to work. The remuneration of the Directors was determined with
reference to their position, responsibilities and experience and
prevailing market conditions.

Foreign exchange risk

The business of the Group is mainly located in the PRC and most
of the transactions are denominated in Renminbi. Most of the
assets and liabilities of the Group are computed in Renminbi. As
at 31 December 2016, the Group’s net foreign currency assets
amounted to approximately RMB58.5 million (31 December 2015:
net foreign currency liabilities of approximately RMB26.8 million).
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group did not
utilize any future contracts, currency borrowings and otherwise to
hedge against its foreign exchange risk. However, the Group will
continue to monitor the risk exposures and will consider to hedge
against material currency risk if required.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
AND FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual results announcement, there were
no other significant investments held nor material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries during the year. Save as disclosed in this
annual results announcement, there was no plan authorised by the
Board for other material investments or additions of capital assets
at the date of this annual results announcement.

PLEDGE OF SHARES BY CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

On 3 June 2015, the Company issued secured notes (the “Notes”)
with an aggregate face value of USD20,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB122,352,000) to Chance Talent. The
Notes bear interest at 13% per annum, payable semiannually.
Subsequently, the Company redeemed the Notes on 13 January
2017. On 3 June 2015, the Company issued two secured
convertible bonds with face value of USD6,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB36,706,000) (“CB1”) and USD4,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB24,470,000) (“CB2”") to
Chance Talent. Both convertible bonds bear interest at 13%
per annum and will mature on 3 June 2018. As at the date of
this annual results announcement, Century Investment pledged
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

its 109,343,662 ordinary shares in the Company (the “Charged
Shares”) to secure the obligations of the Company under the CB1
and CB2. The Charged Shares represent approximately 6.00% of
the issued share capital of the Company. For further details of this
transaction, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 6 May 2015 and 3 June 2015.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB Nil).

PROSPECTS
“Point-Connect” point reward business

This is a milestone for the Company to start-up the “Point-
Connect” point reward business with various State-owned
Enterprises in the last few months. A WOFE in the PRC will
be established to start up the business and target to start its
operation in the second half of 2017.

The corporate structure of this business segment upon completion
will be:
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The Group will set up a membership point alliance with business
partners and to realise points from different industries for
conversion to alliance points in the platform for operation. Based
on the current plan, users can exchange their original points to
alliance points, redeem points for customized merchandise for
aggregation in the form of online and offline consumption, so as
to strengthen the adhesiveness and loyalty of the users and to
promote the market competitiveness of the alliance enterprises.
The Board is of the view that this will bring the Group further
strategic business opportunity and an effective platform for the
e-Commerce and internet finance industry. The Group will place
more focus on the development of the “Point-Connect” point
reward business which is expected to generate a higher return and
in alliance with the current e-Commerce business.

e-Commerce business

At present, there are a lot of business opportunities available to
our e-Commerce business, which is experiencing rapid growth
in the PRC. Looking forward, the Group will commit time and
resources to continuously develop its e-Commerce business. With
the announcement of the “Point-Connect” point reward system
and platform business, the Group expects that the platform for
membership point alliance may create commercial synergies with
our e-Commerce business.

In order to leverage the resources committed for the e-Commerce
and internet finance, the Group will continue to explore other
related business opportunities, including provision of services to fit
its customers’ needs in their online business.

Axle business

Due to the continued depression and uncertainty in the MDT and
HDT industries of the axle business, which brought about under-
utilization of production capacity of the Group’s business in the
axle and component of motor vehicles, and together with the
keen price competition among competitors in the motor vehicles
repair market, the income from this segment will remain low and
continue to suffer losses. The Board will continue to review the
axle business carried out in Longyan. The Company will continue
to explore business opportunities to minimize the losses from the
axle business and to review various alternatives that are in the best
interest of the Company and the shareholders of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management

The biographical details of Directors and senior management of
the Company during the year under review, and as at the date of
this report, are set out below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Jerome, aged 64, was appointed as the chairman
and the executive Director on 25 March 2015. He joined Beijing
Century Fortunet Technology Co., Ltd (It Rit4ZZERIF AR
AHF]) (“OPCo"), a 51% owned subsidiary of the Company since
25 March 2015, in December 2014 and previously served as
the chief information officer of OPCo till December 2015. Mr.
Cheng graduated from University Paris 7 with a DEA (D’Etudes
approfondies) French degree in information technology in 1986.
He has working experience of over 24 years in the IT industry,
serving the AXA Group and Oracle Corporation, both of which
are among the Top 500 worldwide fortune companies. From
1986 to 1994, Mr. Cheng served the AXA Group successively
as network engineer and architect, head of network architecture
team and head of information technology system performance.
From 1998 to 2008, Mr. Cheng worked for BEA Systems, Inc., a
company specialized in enterprise infrastructure software products
which was acquired by Oracle Corporation in 2008, as principal
consulting engineer in BEA France, as managing consulting
engineer in BEA France, as pre-sales consulting manager in BEA
APAC region and as senior manager of BEA Technology Centre
in Beijing, China. In June 2008, Mr. Cheng joined Oracle Systems
Hong Kong Limited as the senior manager of soft development
and served as Principal Solution Architect of Oracle Fusion
Middleware worldwide architecture team from May 2010 to
December 2014.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Yuan Weitao, aged 50, was appointed as the executive
Director on 25 March 2015. He joined OPCo in September 2014
and currently serves as a director and executive vice president
of OPCo, and a director of each of Century Investment (Holding)
Limited (“CIH"), a substantial shareholder of the Company, and
Century East, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of CIH. Mr. Yuan
graduated from Tsinghua University with a bachelor’'s degree in
engineering in 1989 and a master’s degree in engineering in 1992.
He has working experience of over 20 years in international trade,
telecommunications and media industries. Mr. Yuan joined China
National Electronics Import & Export Company (4 EIE 3 H 0O
#/127]), administered by the Ministry of Mechanical Electronic
Devices of the People’s Republic of China, after his graduation
and worked in its overseas subsidiary as a marketing manager
in 1994. Mr. Yuan joined CIH as vice president in 1999 and was
responsible for project development and external cooperation of
CIH. Mr. Yuan has been the general manager of Beijing United
Online Technology Co. Ltd (JtREEEERER AR, a
subsidiary of China Mobile Communications Corporation (7Bl
BEhE{=5%E A7) (“China Mobile”), in 2000; a vice-president
and the representative of the China office of CMBSat which was
a subsidiary of Echostar, one of the US leading satellite television
operators, in 2006; and a vice general manager of CSMM, a
subsidiary of China Telecommunications Corporation (7 B & =&
E 2 7)), from 2010 to August 2014.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mrs. Guo Yan, aged 44, was appointed as the non-executive
Director on 25 March 2015. She has working experience of over
17 years in the IT industry. She has experience in the management
of IT sales and operation of over 15 years. She has led numerous
information/communications technology projects and has
extensive experience particularly in the new mobile internet
business model. Mrs. Guo graduated in testing technology and
instruments (18I E 1T E24525) from Xi'dian University in 1994 and
obtained a postgraduate diploma in astronomical instruments
and methods (KX fEE2E757%) from the Chinese Academy
of Science in 1997. From 1997 to 2014, Mrs. Guo worked for
Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd (2EAFiTIHRRAF]) as a senior
client manager of eastern China region, a director of mobile
system division of China region, a director of the IT purchasing
division of the China region. Mrs. Guo also participated in the
market development of China Mobile in Shanghai as a team leader
and acted as a project manager in the project of the IT centralized
purchasing bid of China United Network Communications
Corporations Limited (1 BBt & (5B R 2 1) (“China Unicom”).
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Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chi Keung, aged 62, was appointed as the independent
non-executive director on 25 March 2015. Mr. Wong obtained
a master’s degree in business administration from the University
of Adelaide in Australia. He is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and CPA Australia and an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants. Mr. Wong is also a responsible officer for asset
management and advising on securities for CASDAQ International
Capital Market (HK) Company Limited under the SFO. Mr.
Wong has over 35 years of experience in finance, accounting
and management. Mr. Wong was an executive director, the
deputy general manager, group financial controller and company
secretary of Guangzhou Investment Company Limited (now
known as Yuexiu Property Company Limited), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 123) for
over ten years. He is also an independent non-executive director
and a member of the audit committee of Asia Orient Holdings
Limited (stock code: 214), Asia Standard International Group
Limited (stock code: 129), Century City International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 355), Nickel Resources International Holdings
Company Limited (formerly known as China Nickel Resources
Holdings Company Limited) (stock code: 2889), China Ting Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3398), ENM Holdings Limited
(stock code: 128), Golden Eagle Retail Group Limited (stock code:
3308), Paliburg Holdings Limited (stock code: 617), Regal Hotels
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 78), TPV Technology
Limited (stock code: 903), Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited
(stock code: 332), Zhuguang Holdings Group Company Limited
(stock code: 1176), China Shanshui Cement Group Limited (stock
code: 691), and Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (stock code:
8046), all of which are companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Wong was also an independent non-executive director of
PacMos Technologies Holdings Limited (now known as PacRay
International Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1010) from 9 August
1995 to 30 June 2014.
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EENSHREERE

Mr. Chan Chi Keung Alan, aged 53, was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director on 25 March 2015. Mr. Chan
is a qualified solicitor admitted in England and Wales in October
1991 and in Hong Kong in February 1992. Mr. Chan practiced
corporate and commercial law for more than two decades.
He is an independent non-executive director and a member of
each of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee of Focus Media Network Limited, a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8112). Previously, Mr. Chan held a number
of regional general counsel roles with international corporations,
including legal vice president for NagaCorp Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
3918), head of legal services of The Hong Kong Jockey Club
and the Greater China Legal Counsel for Sun Microsystems.
He was also an independent non-executive director, chairman
of the remuneration committee and a member of each of the
audit committee and nomination committee of L&A International
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8195) from 25
September 2014 to 19 October 2015. Mr. Chan obtained a
bachelor of science degree in civil engineering from the Aston
University of Birmingham, England and a bachelor of laws degree
in China Law from the China University of Political Science and
Law in Beijing, China. Mr. Chan is a registered civil celebrant in
Hong Kong; a council member of the China Overseas Friendship
Association, Beijing, China (FFEE/EIMNEEEIEE); a committee
member by Special Appointment of the Eighth Zhuhai Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (H B A
RECAtEEREMENEZESIFIEZELZE) and a director of
the Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce Limited.

Mr. Liu Jialin, aged 54, was appointed as the independent non-
executive director of the Company. Mr. Liu also serves as the
independent non-executive director of China Merchants Securities
Co., Ltd (stock code: 6099) and Far East Horizon Limited (stock
code: 3360). Mr. Liu has been the managing director of Cinda
International Asset Management Limited since February 2011.
From 1992 to 2007, Mr. Liu worked for Morgan Stanley group of
companies and once served as a member of the Management
Committee and Asia Executive Committee as well as a Managing
Director in the Fixed Income Division in Hong Kong. Mr. Liu has
over 20 years of experience in finance and securities industry. Mr.
Liu obtained a bachelor’'s degree in science majoring in physics
from Peking University and a master’s degree in science majoring
in physics from Massachusetts Institute of Technology.
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Directors and Senior Management

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas, aged 54, is the chief financial
officer of the Company. Mr. Mak holds a Bachelor degree of
Commerce from Queen’s University, Canada. Mr. Mak is a
member of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada,
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of Hong Kong Business Accountants
Association. Mr. Mak has over 25 years corporate finance and
accounting experience in Hong Kong and overseas. Mr. Mak was
the chief operations officer of HF Financial Group (China) Limited.
Prior to HF Financial Group (China) Limited, Mr. Mak was the chief
financial officer and company secretary in various Main Board
listed and private companies. Mr. Mak worked for an investment
bank and Listing Division of the Stock Exchange respectively.
Mr. Mak has also worked for an international accounting firm in
Hong Kong, Singapore and Canada for over seven years. Mr.
Mak is currently a non-executive director and member of audit
committee and remuneration committee of Huge China Holdings
Limited (stock code: 428), a company listed on the Main Board.
Mr. Mak also serves as the executive director of Millennium Pacific
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8147), a company listed on
the GEM Board since 26 May 2015. Mr. Mak was appointed as
independent non-executive director, chairman of audit committee
and member of remuneration committee of China Greenfresh
Group Company Limited (stock code: 6183), a company listed
on the Main Board with effect from 27 May 2015. He is also an
Independent Non-executive Director of Tao Heung Holdings
Limited (stock code: 573) since 1 March 2007. Besides, he
was also appointed as a member of both Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of Tao Heung Holdings Limited on 9
June 2007

Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Billy, aged 43, is the financial controller,
company secretary, and one of the authorised representatives of
the Company. He graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University
with an Honours Degree with major in Accounting. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Chan has over 20 years’ experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management. He had worked in South China Media
Group for 15 years from December 1999 to May 2015 and
his latest position was the deputy financial controller. He had
worked in South China Land Limited (formerly named as Capital
Publications Limited, stock code 8155) from January 2004 to June
2008 as the qualified accountant and company secretary.

Mr. Yang Jinwen, aged 43, is the deputy general manager. Mr.
Yang is responsible for daily operations, production, distribution
and product development for our axle business of the Group.
Mr. Yang has worked in our Group for 14 years. He has over
ten years of experience in operation and management in the
automotive parts and axle industry. Mr. Yang graduated from
China Agricultural University (FEIZ2%K2) with a bachelor’s
degree in heat engines (/)8 &)#) in 1996. He was qualified as
an intermediate mechanical engineer in December 2003 by the
Personnel Bureau of the city of Longyan (885 ™M A% /). He was
responsible for technology management at Longyan Pump and
Nozzle Plant of Longma Group of Fujian (1232 52 55 5= B 5255 ¥ h
ZRBR) from August 1996 to February 2002.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21 May
2008 under The Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands with (“Companies
Law”) with limited liability.

In preparing for the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Group underwent a
reorganization. As a result, the Company became the holding
company of each of the companies currently comprising the
Group. Details of the reorganization are set out in the prospectus
of the Company dated 13 September 2010. The shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 24 September 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to
the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DISTRIBUTION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
are set out in the financial statements on page 47.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out on page 47 to 151.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2016 are set out on page 51.

SHARE CAPITAL

Changes in share capital of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2016 are set out in note 29(c) to the financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles”) or the laws of Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares to
existing shareholders on a pro-rata basis.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all shareholders
of the Company on 28 June 2010, the Company approved and
adopted a share option scheme for the purpose of enabling the
Group to grant options to selected participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group (the “Share Option
Scheme”).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 80,000,000 share
options had been granted under the Share Option Scheme and
no share options were exercised and lapsed. As at 31 December
2016, the number of outstanding share options is 80,000,000.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of Shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was
80,000,000 Shares, which represented approximately 4.4% of
the Shares in issue. The Share Option Scheme became effective
on 24 September 2010 and the options issued pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme will expire no later than 10 years from the
date of grant of the option. Under the Share Option Scheme, the
Board may grant options to any employees, directors, advisors,
consultants, suppliers, customers, distributors and such other
persons who in the sole opinion of the Board will contribute or
have contributed to the Company or any of its subsidiaries to
subscribe shares of the Company.

For any options granted to Directors, chief executives or
substantial shareholders of the Company, options to be granted
shall be approved by the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding any independent non-executive Director who is the
proposed grantee of options). The number of shares issued and
to be issued in respect of options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
total shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the shareholders.

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1.00,
which will be payable on or before a prescribed acceptance date.
In relation to any options granted under the Share Option Scheme,
the exercise price is determined by the Directors, and will not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s share.

The Share Option Scheme does not contain any minimum
period(s) for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised. However, at the time of granting of the options, the
Board may specify any such minimum period(s).

Unless otherwise terminated by the Board or the shareholders in a
general meeting in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme, the Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years from the date on which it became unconditional which
was 24 September 2010, after which no further options will be
granted or offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give
effect to the exercise of any subsisting options granted prior to the
expiry of the 10-year period or otherwise as may be required in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme. The
remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is approximately 3.5
years.
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As at 31 December 2016, options to subscribe for 80,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company were outstanding, details of
which are set out below and in the note 26 to the financial
statements:

RIZ—X"F+-B=+—8  AlREA& 2 780,000,000 % &}
BRA BB ISR TTIE - EFEBER TR S mERME26 -

Outstanding Grant during  Lapsed during Exercised during Outstanding

asat theyearended theyearended the year ended as at

1 January 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

Name 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016

REZ REZ REZE

R-B-x% —E-RE —E-RE —E-RE R-B-x%

-f-A +=ZB=t+-A +=ZB=+t-A +ZB=t-H +=B=t-H

HE R LEEERY IEFEERN LFEETE AT

Mr. Cheng Jerome Cheng Jerome J&4 - 15,000,000 - . 15,000,000

Mr. Yuan Weitao REBEE - 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000

Mrs. Guo Yan 3o - 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000

Others Ht - 35,000,000 - - 35,000,000

Total ot - 80,000,000 - - 80,000,000
SHARE AWARD SCHEME R EEE

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was adopted
on 10 February 2012 to recognize and motivate the contributions
made to the Group by its employees and to give incentives in
order to retain them for the continuous operation and development
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2016, no
share had been awarded under the Share Award Scheme.
Details of the rules of the Share Award Scheme are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 10 February 2012 and 9
October 2018.

The Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term
of 5 years commencing on the date of adoption on 10 February
2012. Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, Shares will be
acquired by the independent trustee at the cost of the Company
and be held in trust for selected employees until the end of each
vesting period. Vested Shares will be transferred to the selected
employees at nil consideration. At no point in time shall the Trustee
be holding more than 10% of the issued capital of the Company
under the Share Award Scheme. Despite that the Board may
provide directions to grant the voting right to the Trustee, the
Board exerts no influence over the voting decision of the Trustee
and the Trustee is entitled to vote in its sole absolute discretion,
if such voting right is so granted. As at 31 December 2016, no
voting right has been granted by the Board to the Trustee and no
voting right in respect of the Shares held by it under the Scheme
has been exercised in any general meeting of the Company after
the adoption of the Share Award Scheme.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year under review, the aggregate sales attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers comprised approximately
87.4% of the Group’s total sales and the sales attributable to
the Group’s largest customer were approximately 35.5% of the
Group’s total sales. The aggregate purchases during the year
under review attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
were approximately 85.6% of the Group’s cost of sales and
the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier were
approximately 36.3% of the Group’s cost of sales.
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So far as is known to the Directors, none of the Directors, their
associates or substantial shareholders (which own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in the
share capital of any of the five largest customers and suppliers of
the Group.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS

Particulars of bank and other loans of the Group as at 31
December 2016 are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable and other donations during
the year under review (2015: RMB Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

As at 31 December 2016, the Group held property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB83.0 million. Details of the
movements are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

Save for the placing of shares of the Company under the Placing,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or repurchased any of the listed shares of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS

During the year under review and as at the date of this report, the
Board comprised the following directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Jerome (Chairman)
Mr. Yuan Weitao

Non-Executive Directors

Mrs. Guo Yan
Ms. Dong Ying, Dorothy (resigned on 17 February 2016)
Mr. Feng Xiaohui (resigned on 29 April 2016)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Liu Erhfei (resigned on 1 April 2017)
Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Alan

Mr. Liu Jialin (appointed on 1 April 2017)

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, each of Mr. Cheng
Jerome and Mr. Yuan Weitao will retire from the office of Director
by rotation and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Directors’ Report
EEEWRE

BEEMA - BEEAES  REZBEALHTERR (HHB
iﬂ$ AR BETRAS% A EZ AL)RAEENTREF EAK
HIER R E A

RITREMBER

AEER-_Z-RF+Z A=+ RAZRTREMEFFBEHER

%%ﬁﬁmﬁmo

EE]
AEEREEFEALEELEMEEREMMBE (- —hF
ARBEZTT) -

M BERRE

REZ—RF+-A=1+—H AEEHEEYE  BELRFED
/\E%‘SS.OEF%‘T_E B 2 SN BmAM 12 0

BE - HESWMEEATARG

BIRIBAE FRRE AR ARG I - AR B EEANE R FHE
BEREE-Z—R"FTA=+—RHILFEARABE  LEXEM
ARABEF LMD -

=
REBEFEMARRERS  EESRETNIES

Cheng Jerome e 4 (£/&)
REREE

FUTES

EIP- o
RN E (RZE—ANFMHA =+ HEE)

BYFHTES

Rk
BI-REE (R —F—LFHA—HFHE)
BRERSEAE
B E i (R-F—LFHA—AEZT)

IZIRARBIEE 84 1% - Cheng Jerome oA M RIEFE AT G5 ERG

”Eﬁmﬁxﬁﬂiﬁ/\ﬂﬁaimﬁ RIIEE  AERILEL2NEH

BERSBEEERAT

—NEEERE ¢



Directors’ Report
EEERE

Pursuant to article 83(3) of the articles of association of the
Company, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
shareholders after his appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Liu Jialin will stand for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors
entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 25 March 2015 except that Mr.
Cheng Jerome entered into a revised service agreement with the
Company for the period from 16 December 2015 to 24 March
2018, whereas each of the independent non-executive Directors
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 25 March 2015, except that Mr.
Liu Jialin entered into a service agreement with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from 1 April 2017.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
any member of the Group which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Committee considers and recommends to the
Board the remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company
to the Directors. The remuneration of all Directors is subject to
regular monitoring by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that
the levels of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate.
Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 13 to 17 of
the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below and the section headed “Material Related
Party Transactions” in note 32 to the financial statements, there
was no contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party to
and in which a Director had a material interest in, whether directly
or indirectly, and subsisted at the end of the financial year under
review or at any time during the financial year under review.
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DIRECTOR'’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors held any interests in any competing business
against the Company or any of its jointly controlled entities and
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year under review were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse
or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or
was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as of 31
December 2016 are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF THE COMPANY
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”))
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:
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Number of
underlying shares
comprised in options

Approximate
percentage of
shares in issue

Name of Directors (note 1) (note 2)
BEEERERN HEBITRD K

EEpng HERRGEE (ME1) #SAES (E2)

Mr. Cheng Jerome Cheng Jerome 5£ 4 15,000,000 0.90%

Mr. Yuan Weitao RIEEERE 15,000,000 0.90%

Mrs. Guo Yan EilP Y ogun 15,000,000 0.90%

Notes: Bz -

1. These represent interest in underlying shares of the Share Option Scheme 1. FZERGIER=ZF—ZFENF =+ AIRA I fER G 2R = F —

adopted on 28 June 2010 and options granted on 3 October 2016. F+H=HRTHIEREZ 157 -
2. Based on a total of 1,671,615,272 issued shares of the Company, as at 2. R ZFE—NFFZA=1+—HELRE]E£1,671,615272 8 E ZF7TH 7

31 December 2016.
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company or their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within Part XV of the “SFO”) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2016, to the best of the Director’s knowledge,
the following persons (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) had or deemed or taken to have
interests and short positions of 5% or more in the shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed under provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long and short positions in the Shares and underlying
Shares of our Company

B EXHEEEIN RZF—R"F+_A=1+—8 ARFE=R
HmBITHRA B RIEES BRI A L BIEN AR B S E AT
B (& REBENEST1 BES LB ([FHRBEE )
SEXVED) Bty - BRI BT ARIEE S M E R
XVERE 7 8 5 BR /R AN & A 1N B) R g 2 P (R I s sk B (2
RS R RO A0 B BRSO EAR R A e e PR
B BIRIEE S MATE 1RG5 352 (R/ARLER N R IR PT L& FC ey

REzORE - RERAEST RIZAME R R R 32 e R s o0
PN
o

FERR

RZZB-—RF+ZA=+—8  BEZEMRA  RARFBRN
BEESBR R RIEE S MAEEPIEXVEIEF2 37 #f 2 X
ATHEIREES LB EPIFEIB6IRATE 2B MALEZ
5% A LEE AR AL (MEREARREERESTHRAE)
mr

EARRDREERDNFRERKR

Approximate

Name of substantial Interest in percentage of
Shareholders Nature of Interest Shares shareholding Notes
BORE

FTERRER ERME K3 AL Bt =

Century Investment (Holding) Limited (“CIHL”) Beneficial interest 566,885,318 33.91 1
BamEs

Starr International Foundation Interest of controlled corporations 224,710,691 13.44 2
R EE S

Yang Liu Interests of controlled corporations 184,202,000 11.02 3

2k R EE S

Taiping Trustees Limited Beneficial interest 138,888,000 8.31 4

WBEHERER AT BEmiEm

Notes: Htat -

1. CIHL is wholly owned by Ms. Pun Tang. On 3 June 2015, a charge 1. CIHLH# Pun Tang X+ ZE#HE - R=F—AFNA=H  ¥CIHL#FE

over the 505,581,818 Shares held by CIHL had been created in favour
of Chance Talent Management Limited. Chance Talent Management
Limited is wholly owned by CCBI Investments Limited, which is in turn
wholly owned by CCB International (Holdings) Limited. CCB International
(Holdings) Limited is wholly owned by CCB Financial Holdings Limited,
which is in turn wholly owned by CCB International Group Holdings
Limited. CCB International Group Holdings Limited is wholly owned by
China Construction Bank Corporation, which is owned as to 57.26% by
Central Huijin Investment Ltd.

2. Starr Investments Cayman I, Inc. and Starr Investments Cayman
V, Inc. are the beneficial owners of Shares as to 6.87% and 6.58%
respectively. Starr Investments Cayman I, Inc. is wholly-owned by
Starr International Cayman, Inc., which is in turn wholly-owned by Starr
Insurance and Reinsurance Ltd.. Starr Insurance and Reinsurance Ltd.
and Starr Investments Cayman V, Inc. are wholly-owned subsidiaries
of Starr International Investments Ltd., which is in turn wholly-owned
by Starr International Company Inc.. Starr International Company Inc.
is wholly-owned by Starr International AG, which is wholly-owned by
Starr International Foundation, a charitable foundation established in
Switzerland.
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505,581,818 B A& 17 1E1111X Chance Talent Management Limited 725 A
#9750 > Chance Talent Management Limited #1 CCBI Investments Limited
2 E#H + CCBI Investments Limited F1iZ R EIRY (1258 ) BIR 22 512 E#
B o BIREIN (FFAR) BIR 2 A] 7T 2 BIER G RN A2 EHR - E1T
PAITRERA A ETTEREFZERER A ]2 B  EiTERE
BB R ] P B E R RTTIR P B IR A E] 2 B A EIZRIRTT
RODEIRL B R IERREFHIRE(FLAIHEH 57.26% °

2. Starr Investments Cayman Ii, Inc. % Starr Investments Cayman V, Inc. 73
SEIHEE 6.87% K 6.58% R 178 EmEA A © Starr Investments Cayman
I, Inc. B3 Starr International Cayman, Inc. & ## - Starr International
Cayman, Inc. /1 Starr Insurance and Reinsurance Ltd. &% ° Starr
Insurance and Reinsurance Ltd. % Starr Investments Cayman V, Inc. 7
Starr International Investments Ltd. #9% & /12 7] + Starr International
Investments Ltd. /1 Starr International Company Inc. £&## ° Starr
International Company Inc. 1 Starr International AG £ &## + Starr
International AG /i Starr International Foundation (J\i 15k 7 2% & E %)
PEHEE -



3. Riverwood Asset Management (Cayman) Limited, Atlantis Investment
Management (Ireland) Limited and Atlantis Investment Management
(Hong Kong) Limited are the beneficial owners of Shares. Riverwood
Asset Management (Cayman) Limited is wholly owned by Yang Liu.
Atlantis Investment Management (Ireland) Limited and Atlantis Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited are wholly owned by Atlantis Capital
Holdings Limited which is in turn wholly owned by Yang Liu.

4. Taiping Trustees Limited is the beneficial owner of Shares. The ultimate
controlling shareholder of Taiping Trustees Limited is China Taiping
Insurance Group Limited, which is ultimately controlled by the State
Council of the PRC.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December
2016.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the
employer and employee are required to make contributions of 5%
of the employees’ relevant income to the scheme, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions made to
the scheme are vested immediately.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of
China participate in the retirement schemes operated by the local
authorities. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their salaries to these schemes to pay the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group in respect to these schemes
is the required contributions under the schemes. For the year
ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s total contributions to the
retirement schemes charged in the income statement amounted
to approximately RMB3.2 million (2015: approximately RMB4.7
million). Details of the Group’s retirement scheme and the basis of
calculation are set out in note 7(b) to the financial statements.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures with a view to
enhancing investor confidence and the Company’s accountability
and transparency. The Company therefore strives to attain
and maintain effective corporate governance practices and
procedures. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016 and
save as disclosed herein this report, the Company has complied
with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Group’s
principal corporate governance practices are set out on pages 27
to 36 of the annual report.

Directors’ Report
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3. Riverwood Asset Management (Cayman) Limited ~ Atlantis Investment
Management (Ireland)) Limited % 753 18 & B FE (28 ) G R 22 7] BAR 7 H) &
2B A ° Riverwood Asset Management (Cayman) Limited /2% 2 &
## % ° Atlantis Investment Management (Ireland) Limited } 757 1 5 &2
(Z58) BIR A A/ Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited 2 &% + i1 Atlantis
Capital Holdings Limited fi &% 2 E#F - .
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company (as lender) and Century Network Holding Limited
(@ non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) (as borrower)
entered into the Loan Agreement on 11 June 2015, pursuant to
which the Company conditionally agreed to advance an unsecured
loan of an aggregate amount of not more than US$22 million
to its 51% owned subsidiary, Century Network. The details are
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 11 June 2015.
As at 31 December 2015, the full amount of US$22 million was
advanced to Century Network Holding Limited by the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

None of the related party transactions set out in the section
headed “Material Related Party Transactions” in note 32 to
the financial statements constitutes connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction which is required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that
the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 24 May, 2017 to Monday, 29 May 2017, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to determine who are entitled to attend and
vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on Monday, 29 May 2017, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 23 May 2017.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 have been audited by KPMG who shall retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. A
resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint KPMG as auditor of the
Company.

By order of the Board
Cheng Jerome
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures with a view to
being a transparent and responsible organization which is open
and accountable to the Company’s shareholders. The Board
strives to adhere to the principles of corporate governance
and has adopted sound corporate governance practices to
meet the legal and commercial standards, focusing on areas
such as internal control, fair disclosure and accountability to all
shareholders to ensure the transparency and accountability of all
operations of the Company. The Company believes that effective
corporate governance is an essential factor to create more value
for its shareholders. The Board will continue to review and improve
the corporate governance practices of the Group from time to time
to ensure that the Group is led by an effective Board in order to
optimize return for shareholders.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company has complied with the CG
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 December 2016.

THE BOARD

The Board consists of six Directors, two of whom are executive
Directors, one of whom is non-executive Directors and three
of whom are independent non-executive Directors. The
functions and duties conferred on the Board include convening
shareholders’ meetings and reporting on the work of the Board
to the shareholders at shareholders’ meetings as may be
required by applicable laws, implementing resolutions passed at
shareholders’ meetings, determining the Company’s business
plans and investment plans, formulating the Company’s annual
budget and final accounts, formulating the Company’s proposals
for dividend and bonus distributions as well as exercising other
powers, functions and duties as conferred on it by the Articles
and applicable laws. The management team is delegated with
the authority and responsibilities by the Board for the day-to-
day management and operations of the Group. The Board meets
regularly to review the financial and operating performance of the
Company, and considers and approves the overall strategies and
policies of the Company. The composition of the Board is well
balanced with the directors having sound industry knowledge,
extensive corporate and strategic planning experience and/or
expertise relevant to the business of the Group. The executive
Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors bring a variety of experience and expertise to the
Company.

The composition of the Board during the year ended 31 December
2016 and up to the date of this Annual Report is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Jerome (Chairman)
Mr. Yuan Weitao

Non-Executive Directors
Mrs. Guo Yan

Ms. Dong Ying, Dorothy (resigned on 17 February 2076)
Mr. Feng Xiaohui (resigned on 29 April 2016)

Corporate Governance Report
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Alan

Mr. Liu Jialin (appointed on 1 April 2017)
Mr. Liu Erhfei (resigned on 1 April 2017)

The biographical details of the current Board members are set out
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 13 to 17 of this report. The list of directors (by category)
is also disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time. The
independent non-executive Directors are expressly identified in all
corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors
with at least one independent non-executive director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise, and the independent non-
executive directors represented over one-third of the Board.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of its independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Based on the contents of such confirmation, the Company
considers that the three independent non-executive Directors are
independent and that they have met the specific independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors have separate and independent access to the
Company’s management team to fulfill their duties and, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. All
Directors also have access to the company secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, are followed. An agenda and
accompanying Board/committee papers are distributed to the
Directors/Board committee members with reasonable notices
in advance of the meetings. Minutes of Board meetings and
meetings of Board committees, which record in sufficient detail the
matters considered by the Board and decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed,
are kept by the company secretary and are open for inspection by
Directors.

The Company has arranged for appropriate and sufficient
insurance coverage on directors’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions taken against its directors arising out of corporate
activities.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company, and considers and approves the
overall strategies and policies of the Company.

There is no other relationship among members of the Board, the
Chairman or the Chief Executive Officer.
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Non-executive Directors

The non-executive Director has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
from 25 March 2015, whereas each of the independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company and is appointed for an initial term of three years
commencing from 25 March 2015, except that Mr. Liu Jialin
entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 1 April 2017.

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but
not less than one third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once
every three years.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Prior to 16 June 2015, the roles and duties of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company are carried out by
different individuals and have been clearly defined in writing. The
Chairman of the Board is Mr. Wong Kwai Mo (before 25 March
2015) and Mr. Cheng Jerome (after 25 March 2015), and the Chief
Executive Officer is Mr. Lai Fengcai. The positions of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer are held by separate persons in order
to preserve independence and a balance of views and judgement.
With the support of the management team, the Chairman is
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings. The Chief
Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives, policies and
strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge
of the Company’s day-to-day management and operations. The
Chief Executive Officer is also responsible for developing strategic
plans and formulating the organizational structure, control systems
and internal procedures and processes for the Board’s approval.

On 16 June 2015, Mr Lai Fengcai resigned as Chief Executive
Officer. The Company is in the process of identifying a suitable
candidate to assume the role as chief executive officer of the
Company.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company. Every newly appointed Director will receive a
formal, comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness of
director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors participated in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. They were involved in relevant training courses at the
Company’s expenses. All Directors also read materials in relation
to regular update to statutory requirements, Listing Rules and
other relevant topics related to a listed company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of sound corporate governance practices,
the Board has established the following Board committees to
oversee the particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. Each of these
committees comprises independent non-executive Directors who
are being invited to join as members.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in compliance with
Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and monitor the
Company’s financial reporting and internal control principles of
the Company and to provide advice and comments to the Board.
The members meet regularly with the external auditors and the
Company’s management team for the review, supervision and
discussion of the Company’s financial reporting and internal
control procedures and ensure that management has discharged
its duty to have an effective internal control and risk management
system. During the year 2016, the Audit Committee consists of
three members, namely Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Mr. Liu Erhfei and
Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Alan, of whom were all independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. Wong Chi Keung, who has appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in accounting matters,
was appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee. On 1 April
2017, Mr. Liu Erhfei resigned as member of the Audit Committee
and Mr. Liu Jialin was appointed to fill a casual vacancy.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year under
review to review the financial results of the Group and significant
issues on the financial reporting and compliance procedures,
internal control and risk management systems.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016,
including the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, selection and appointment of the external auditors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

During the period under review, the Audit Committee was
also responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company performing the corporate governance
duties as below:

o to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and management
team;

o to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems of
risk management and internal control of the Group;

o to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements
(where applicable);

o to develop, review and monitor the relevant code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and directors of the Group; and

o to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 24 September 2010 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. During the
year 2016, the Remuneration Committee was chaired by Mr.
Liu Erhfei with two Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Jerome and
Mr. Wong Chi Keung, as members. On 1 April 2017, Mr. Liu
Erhfei resigned as chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and Mr. Liu Jialin was appointed to fill a casual vacancy. The
principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
formulate and recommend remuneration policy to the Board,
make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and management team’s
remunerations, approve and review management’s proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives
and make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors of the Company. The Board expects
the Remuneration Committee to exercise independent judgment
and ensure that executive Directors do not participate in the
determination of their own remunerations.

The Remuneration Committee held two committee meeting during
the year under review to review and made recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration policy and structure of the Company
and remuneration packages of Directors.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established on 24 September 2010. During the
year 2016 the chairman was Mr Cheng Jerome, an executive
Director of the Company, with two other members, namely
Mr. Wong Chi Keung and Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Alan. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for determining the policy
for the nomination of Directors, reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, making recommendation to the Board
on selection of candidates for directorships, appointment and
reappointment of Directors and Board succession and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The Company adopts the board diversity policy and recognizes
board diversity as the key element for the achievement of its
strategic goals and sustainable development. In considering the
composition and diversity of the Board, the Company takes into
account a number of factors from various aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. All decisions regarding appointment of members of the
Board will be based on the candidates’ meritocracy having regard
to a set of objective standards that take into account the benefits
of board diversity.

Selection of candidates will be based on a set of diversity criteria,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be made with
reference to the candidates’ merits and contributions to the Board.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year
under review to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’
ATTENDANCE

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings
of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee, Independent Non-executive Directors and
the general meeting of the Company during the year ended 31

December 2016 is set out below:

EERRESHEAE

BEZT-—RF+-_A=+—BIFE SNEFHFEEZ -
ERRES FHERES REAZBeeR  BUFNTEFE
BARARRPRRAEEA L EREHIINAT -

Independent
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Non-executive Annual  Extraordinary
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Directors General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meetng Meeting
BIFHT
ESgeE ENZEE  FMZEE ReZEg EsgE RRBEAE RRERAE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Cheng Jerome Cheng Jerome £ 99  NATER 112 " NATER 17 17
Mr. Yuan Weitao RERRE 99  NATER NATER  NATER  NATER 11 1
Non-executive Directors FHEE
Mrs. Guo Yan PEaT 19 NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER o o
Ms. Dong Yin, Dorothy g0t
(resigned on 17 February 2016) (R-B-rE-f+AE) 02 NATER NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER  NATEA
Mr. Feng Xiaohui (resigned on 20 April 2016)  B/NE 4
(R=F-—7ERF=1NAER) 04 NATER NATEE  NATEE  NATER  NATER o
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTEE
Mr. Wong Chi Keung HoBRE 919 33 22 17 111 " 0
Mr. Liu Erhfel (resigned on 1 April 2017) Bk
(R-F—tEmF—AFE) 59 33 202 NATER il 0/ 0
Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Alan [ P 79 33 NATER 1 111 " 1
. Liu Jialin (appointed on 1 April 2017) Uzhrk
(R=E—+ERA—-AEZH) NATER  NATER  NATMER  NATER  NATER  NATER  NATNER
Code Provision A.6.7 SFAME XS A6.T &

Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that independent
non-executive directors and non-executive directors should attend
general meetings of the Company. Mr. Liu Erhfei and Mrs. Guo
Yan were not able to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 20 May 2016. Mr. Feng Xioahui, Mrs. Guo Yan,
Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Mr. Liu Erhfei were not able to attend the
extraordinary general meeting on 22 April 2016.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
for securities transactions. Specific enquiries have been made
with all Directors, who have confirmed that, during the period
under review, they were in compliance with the required provisions
set out in the Model Code. All Directors declared that they have
complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December
2016.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Billy, the Company Secretary of the
Company, is a full time employee of the Group and has day-to-
day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. He also serves as the
secretary of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee as organized by the board from time
to time. During the year 2016, the Company Secretary complied
with the relevant professional training requirement under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biographical details of the Company
Secretary is set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” on page 17 in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of
the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2016 which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and of the Group at that date and of the Group’s
results and cash flows for the year then ended and are properly
prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with the
applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards. The
statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report”.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the remuneration aid

or payable to the Group’s auditors, KPMG, in respect of their audit
and non-audit services are as follows:
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Amount
X -}
RMB’000
ARETT

Items EHE
Statutory audit services SEEZE RS 2,000
Internal control advisory services A EBEE AR 480
Disposal services BEER® 1,150
Total i 3,630

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control and risk management systems in order to
safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests, and
review and monitor the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control and risk management systems on a regular basis so as
to ensure that internal control and risk management systems
in place are adequate. The Company has established written
policies and procedures applicable to all operating units to ensure
the effectiveness of internal controls. The Company also has a
process of identifying, evaluating, and managing the significant
risks to the achievement of its operational objective. This process
is subject to continuous improvement and has been in place since
24 September 2010 and up to the date of this report. The day-to-
day operation is entrusted to the individual department, which is
accountable for its own conduct and performance, and is required
to strictly adhere to the policies set by the Board. The Company
carries out reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control and
risk management systems from time to time in order to ensure
that they are able to meet and deal with the dynamic and ever
changing business environment.
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The risk management framework includes identifying significant
risks in the Group’s operation environment and evaluate the
impacts of those risks on the Group’s business; develop
necessary measures to manage those risks; and monitor and
review the effectiveness of such measures. The implementation
of risk management framework of the Group was assisted by the
Group’s internal audit function so that the Group could ensure
new and emerging risks relevant to the Group’s operation are
promptly identified by management, assess the adequacy of
action plans to manage these risks and monitor and evaluate the
effectiveness of the action plans. These are on-going processes
and our Audit Committee reviews periodically the Group’s risk
management systems.

Our Audit Committee reported to the Board the implementation
of the Group’s risk management and internal control policy which,
among other things, included the determination of risk factors,
evaluation of risk level the Group could take and effectiveness of
risk management measures. Based on the reports from internal
audit function and the Audit Committee, the Board believes that
the existing internal control and risk management systems are
adequate and effective.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO REQUISITION
AND CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING (INCLUDING PROPOSING A RESOLUTION AT
AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING)

. Any two or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (the “Eligible
Shareholders”) shall at all times have the right, by a written
requisition signed by the Eligible Shareholders concerned
(the “Requisition”), to require the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting, and to put any resolution so
requisitioned to vote at such extraordinary general meeting.

o Eligible Shareholders who wish to requisition the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting for the purpose
of proposing a resolution at the extraordinary general
meeting must deposit the Requisition at the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room
808 - 814, 8/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

o The Requisition must state clearly the names of the
Eligible Shareholders concerned, specify the objects of
the meeting, and be signed by the Eligible Shareholders
concerned. The Eligible Shareholders must prove their
shareholdings in the Company to the satisfaction of the
Company.
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. The Company will check the Requisition and the identities
and the shareholdings of the Eligible Shareholders will
be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar.
If the Requisition is found to be proper and in order and
in compliance with the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company, the Board will within 21
days of the date of deposit of the Requisition, proceed
duly to convene an extraordinary general meeting to be
held within a further 21 days, for the purpose of putting
any resolution(s) proposed by the Eligible Shareholders
to vote at such extraordinary general meeting. However,
if the Requisition has been verified as not in order and
not in compliance with the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company, the Eligible Shareholders
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,
the Board will not convene an extraordinary general meeting
and will not put any resolution(s) proposed by the Eligible
Shareholders to vote at any such extraordinary general
meeting or any other general meeting of the Company.

o If within 21 days of the date of deposit of the Requisition,
the Board has not advised the Eligible Shareholders that
the Requisition is not in order and not in compliance
with the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company, and the Board has failed to proceed to convene
an extraordinary general meeting, the Eligible Shareholders
themselves (or any one or more of the Eligible Shareholders
who holds more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all the Eligible Shareholders who signed the Requisition)
may proceed to convene the extraordinary general meeting
in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which general meetings may be convened by the Board
in accordance with the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company, provided that the extraordinary
general meeting so convened must be held before the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of
the Requisition. All reasonable expenses incurred by the
Eligible Shareholders concerned as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholders
concerned by the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining a clear,
timely and effective communication with the shareholders of the
Company and investors. The Board also recognizes that effective
communication with its investors is critical in establishing investors’
confidence and attracting new investors. Therefore, the Group is
committed to maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure
the investors and the shareholders of the Company will receive
accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information of the
Group through the publication of annual reports, interim reports,
announcements and circulars. The Company also publishes all
corporate communications on the Company’s website at www.
fortunetecomm.com. Further, shareholders of the Company may
send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing
them to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong. The Board maintains regular dialogues with institutional
investors and analysts from time to time to keep them informed
of the Group’s strategy, operations, management and plans. The
Directors and members of various board committees will attend
the annual general meeting of the Company and answer any
questions raised. The resolution of every important proposal will be
proposed at general meetings separately.
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The chairman of general meetings of the Company would explain AREBRRAEGTHFERUREFRRR—IBRZE LV AIFEE

the procedures for conducting a poll before proposing a resolution TERENRER - BRENERBN ARG L5/ - Wi o BITER R FT
for voting. The poll results will be announced at general meetings &$ RIMABL E A o o - RAREHHEBEERES - B
and published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the DA R SIS erE - WA M AMAARIMEERE Y

Company, respectively. In addition, the Company regularly meets BE - #MERERRSW I BE(RERATZER -
with institutional investors, financial analysts and financial media,

and promptly releases information related to any significant

progress of the Company, so as to promote the development of

the Company through mutual and efficient communications.

During the year under review, there was no change to the REIEEE - ANARINES I ) o
constitutional documents of the Company.

BREEERERADER T D RAARRELES

Shareholders investors and the media can make enquiries to the
Company through the following means:

Telephone number: (852) 2776 8500
By post: Room 808-814,
8/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre,

EHE - (852) 2776 8500
IR BAETFEEEI0R
FBEAL8HE

30 Harbour Road, 808-814 =
Wanchai, Hong Kong _ N
Attention: Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Billy % © BRAERRL A

By email: ir@cigmall.cn BH : r@cigmall.cn
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 47 to 151,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of goodwill, intangible assets, long-term
lease prepayments (land use rights) and property,
plant and equipment (“PP&E”)

Refer to Notes 12,183,714 and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(j)
(i)-

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was
addressed in our audit

As at 31 December
2016, goodwill and
intangible assets relating
to the e-commerce
business amounted to
RMB83,680,000 in total,
representing 11% of the
total assets of the Group at e involving our internal
that date. valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating
the methodology used
by management in
its preparation of the
discounted cash flow
forecasts with reference
to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting
standards;

Our audit procedures to
assess the valuation of
goodwill, intangible assets,
long-term lease prepayments
and PP&E included the
following:

As at 31 December
2016, long-term lease
prepayments and PP&E
mainly relating to the axle
business amounted to
RMB94,454,000 in total,
representing 13% of the
total assets of the Group
at that date.

e involving our internal
valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the
discount rates applied in
the discounted cash flow
forecasts by assessing
whether the discount
rates applied in the
discounted cash flow
forecasts were within the
range adopted by other
companies in the same
industry;

The e-commerce business
of the Group is in an early
development stage with
expected substantial
business growth in future
periods. The actual future
business growth may be
less than expected and
there is a risk that the
goodwill and intangible
assets may be impaired.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Revenue from the axle
business decreased from
RMB127,183,000 in
2015 to RMB83,380,000
in 2016. The segment
gross loss for the axle
business amounted to
RMB7,155,000 for the
year ended 31 December
2016.

The directors considered
that there were indicators
of impairment of these
assets and prepared the
impairment assessments
of the cash generating
units (“CGUs”) to which
the assets were allocated
using the value in use
model and fair value
less costs of disposal
model. These impairment
assessments involve
significant degree of
management judgement,
particularly in relation
to the key assumptions
adopted, including
unique visitor numbers,
conversion rates and
amount per customer
transaction for the
e-commerce business,
sales volumes and average
selling prices for products
of the axle business, the
discount rates applied
in the discounted cash
flow forecasts and the
remaining useful economic
lives and price volatility of
the relevant assets.

evaluating management’s
identification of cash-
generating units (“CGUs”)
and the amounts of
goodwill and intangible
assets allocated to the
e-commerce CGU and
the amounts of long-term
lease prepayments and
PP&E allocated to the
axle CGU;

assessing and
challenging the key
assumptions adopted
by management in its
cash flow forecast of the
e-commerce business,
including unique visitor
numbers, conversion
rates and amount per
customer transaction,
and in its cash flow
forecast of the axle
business, including
sales volumes and
average selling prices
for products of the axle
business, by comparing
the key assumptions,
where possible, with
market and other
external available
information;
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBEHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

We identified the
valuation of goodwill,
intangible assets, lease
prepayments and PP&E
as a key audit matter
because the impairment
assessments of these
assets involve a significant
degree of management
judgement in relation
to the key assumptions
adopted in the impairment
assessment models, some
of which are inherently
uncertain and may be
subject to management
bias.

comparing the
revenue and operating
costs included in the
discounted cash flow
forecasts prepared in the
prior year with the current
year’'s performance of
each CGU to assess
how accurate the prior
year’s discounted cash
flow forecasts were
and making enquiries
of management as to
the reasons for any
significant variations
identified;

involving our internal
valuations specialists to
assist us in assessing
the key assumptions
adopted in the
calculation of the fair
value less costs of
disposal of the long-
term lease prepayments
and PP&E, including
the remaining useful
economic lives and
price volatility of the
relevant assets, by
assessing whether the
key assumptions were
within the range adopted
by other companies in
the same industry or
performing recalculations
by using market and
other external available
information derived from
similar industries or
comparable transactions;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

obtaining from
management sensitivity
analyses of the key
assumptions, including
unique visitor numbers,
conversion rates and
amount per customer
transaction for the
e-commerce business,
sales volumes and
average selling prices
for products of the axle
business, the discount
rates applied in the
discounted cash flow
forecasts and remaining
useful economic lives
and price fluctuations
of the relevant assets,
adopted in the
discounted cash flow
forecasts and fair value
less costs of disposal
calculations prepared
by management and
assessing the impact
on the conclusion of the
impairment assessments,
the impairment charged
for the year and whether
there were any indicators
of management bias; and

considering the
disclosures in the
consolidated financial
statements in respect
of impairment testing
of goodwill, intangible
assets, long-term lease
prepayments and PP&E
with reference to the
requirements of the
prevailing accounting
standards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBEHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Allowances for doubtful debts

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(j)(i).

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December
2016, trade receivables
amounting to
RMB300,540,000 were
past due and allowances
for doubtful debts of
RMB276,533,000 were
recognised at that date.
The net carrying amount
of these trade receivables
of RMB24,007,000
represented 3% of the
total assets of the Group
at that date.

The Group’s allowances
for doubtful debts are
based on management’s
estimate of the
expected credit losses
to be incurred, which is
estimated by taking into
account the credit history
of the Group’s customers
and current market
and customer-specific
conditions. All of these
factors involve a significant
degree of management
judgement.

The Group’s allowances
for doubtful debts include
a specific element based
on individual debtors and
a collective element based
on historical experience
adjusted for certain current
factors.

How the matter was
addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to
assess the allowances for
doubtful debts included the
following:

obtaining an
understanding of and
assessing the design,
implementation and
operating effectiveness
of management’s key
internal controls relating
to credit control, debt
collection and making
allowances for doubtful
debts;

assessing, on a sample
basis, the categorisation
of items in the trade
receivables ageing report
by comparing individual
items to the underlying
sales invoices and goods
delivery notes;

inquiring of management,
on a sample basis, about
the recoverability of
individual balances and
evaluating the allowances
for doubtful debts made
by management for these
individual balances with
reference to the debtors’
financial condition,
the ageing of overdue
balances and historical
and post year-end
payment records;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

We identified assessing
the allowances for doubtful
debts as a key audit
matter because assessing
the level of allowances
involves significant
management judgement
in estimating the expected
credit losses to be
incurred.

assessing the
assumptions and
estimates made by
management for the
collective assessment of
allowances for doubtful
debts by performing a
retrospective review of
the historical accuracy
of these estimates

Independent Auditor’s Report
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and recalculating the
Group’s allowances with
reference to the Group’s
policy for collective
assessment; and

e inspecting cash receipts,
on a sample basis, from
customers subsequent
to the financial year
end relating to trade
receivable balances as at
31 December 2016.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B RS

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B HEN RS

BB ET RSB RRARENEE (H)

EREE BB ENDETETHERET  BRIERTE
RHE - RIS T ERESREE o RIIT

o HBIMFEBENRFFRBERM BB MWK
HEBARHERBOAO R - RETRATE IR ALRE
HELRE R ARBERTEMNEENETRE
ERRMERNER - HRIFFAIES RER - B
e BRER ERRAM - SOZERAGES 2
£ FE R BE B3R (R ARRF T 8 2 e A R AR BRI A
BB = I R BE 3R 3R IR 5 R T B B ) B K R R UL A

Rk

o  EMEFEAREAARIES] - URFHEENETE
FrBEEMY I EREAEHNEREERE
E/ o

e FIMEEEMRASTERNREERIEL G
MABRA R BN SR

s HESRAKELLSTERNBEEFLER -
RIZPTERNETRE - BERSFAEHEEENIF
ABRAMERNTHETE M ERH S KB
REKEENELEEARRE  MRRMARRFEE
APHEEN  MABNEECEMBESTIRAEERE
IREAMBMRPOEREKE - BREAHENEKE
TR ARMEEERIEREER - LAINGEH
REENZEENRE A EPARGHETETRE - A
ARREZERIEN AL ERERETREFFELL -

o HESAMBMERNERINRLA  HBENAR
BREEE URGEEMBEHRREESTERRZ S
1R

BESHEMERAT —TAEEEHL e



Independent Auditor’s Report
B RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Wan Chi Yau, Charles.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeBRRHEMZERSER

BHE—Z—R"F+-A=t—HLFE
(AARYE ([ ARE D HIT)

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross loss

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses
Research and development costs
Impairment losses

Loss from operations

Finance costs

Loss on financial guarantee
contracts issued

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Loss before taxation
Income tax

Loss and total comprehensive income
for the year

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss and total comprehensive income
for the year

Loss per share
Basic and diluted (RMB)

for the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Renminbi ("RMB"))

Note
B 5E
A 4
SHE RS
EE 4(b)
HAlg A 5
SHE kD HRX
THAX
T EE A AR
RIEESE 6
KEEE
BhE AR 7(@)
BB B S E R
BHREE 28
H— A B AR 2 s
E ) ] 7
Frig i 8(a)
FREBERZEBA
4 %E
BUR AR -
RARERIER
eI i S
FREBERZEBAELE
BREE
EAXRRE#E(ARE) 11

The notes on pages 54 to 151 form part of these financial

statements.

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETTT
385,468 170,355
(398,180) (330,160)
(12,712) (159,805)
22,806 9,498
(26,841) (45,527)
(76,275) (86,384)
(23,200 (27,388)
(33,404) (312,288)
(149,626) (621,894)
(85,288) (48,732)
(30,965) =

- 39,409
(265,879) (631,217)
25512 16,264
(240,367) (614,953)
(176,604) (573,978)
(63,763) (40,975)
(240,367) (614,953)
(0.12) (0.42)

FE54 BE 151 EMEARTBHRKRZ —#D -

SERIBEEERAE

—EAFFERS

o



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
T e IR R

at 31 December 2016 R=Z—X<F+=-A=+—A8
(Expressed in RMB) (LA AER¥EZII7R)

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARET T ARET T

Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment I E N 12 82,970 109,528
Lease prepayments FENHEERE 13 11,207 11,484
Intangible assets B EE 14 22,667 18,124
Goodwil EES 15 61,013 61,013
Deferred tax assets EEFIBEE 27(b) 50,487 26,270
228,344 226,419

Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 17 29,259 63,604
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b SR IE 18 315,373 49,490
Assets classified as held-for-sale "*,Ez\—%:ﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁz,éi% 19 70,398 240,920
Pledged bank deposits BEEFRITIFHK 20 461 53
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReFEEER 21 90,002 195,632
505,493 549,699
Current liabilities REEE

Trade and other payables B 5 KR HAFERFIR 22 159,511 150,924
Bank and other loans RITREAME R 23(a) 195,665 171,904
Secured notes BIRER 24 141,161 =
Convertible bonds AT AR E S 25 115,976 =
Provisions B 28 30,965 =
Liabilities classified as held-for-sale PDEAFBEHEZEE 19 - 167,278
643,278 490,106
Net current (liabilities)/assets EBRE(AE) BE (137,785) 59,593
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBERE 90,559 286,012

Non-current liabilities FRBEMS
Secured notes AR EE 24 - 128,271
Convertible bonds ‘Hﬁ KES 25 - 80,409
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIB A E 27(b) 3,946 5,241
3,946 213,921
NET ASSETS BEFE 86,613 72,091

The notes on pages 54 to 151 form part of these financial F 54 HE 151 BEMisE AR EEmEx 2 —#5 °
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A AR R

at 31 December 2016 R=T—X "F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in RMB)  (JAAR¥57R)

2016 2015
—E—RE —“E—FhHF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
LiEz3 AR®T T ARETTT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRHE 29
Share capital &N 108,209 98,557
Reserves e 66,798 (4,696)
Total equity attributable to equity AA T ERBRELEER
shareholders of the Company 175,007 93,861
Non-controlling interests eI (88,394) (21,770)
TOTAL EQUITY HRERS 86,613 72,091

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of R-ZBE—+tF=A- - HEESHERRETE -
directors on 22 March 2017.

Cheng Jerome Yuan Weitao
Cheng Jerome =ES
Director (Chairman) Director
EBE(LE) EE

The notes on pages 54 to 151 form part of these financial F 54 HE 151 BN AR KR 2 —#5 °
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERREER

for the year ended 31 December 2016 HBZE—F—RFT-A=1+—HILFE
(AAREEFIR)

(Expressed in RMB)

Balance at 1 January 2015

Changes in equity for 2015:
Loss and total comprehensive income
for the year

Issuance of shares fo new equity
shareholders of the Gompany

Issuance of shares on acquisttion of
asubsilary

Shares granted under the share
award scheme

Shares vestedt under the share
award scheme

Balance at 31 December 2015

The notes on pages 54 to 151 form part of these financial

statements.

R-%-1§-A-RZEH
CR-RE RREE:

MERERRREAALE
AR EERRE R
HE-FHELTRRR
REROREHRARR
RERGZEIRRARN

R

ApiH

-RETZA=1-H
bl

=2

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KARRRRRERS
Shares held
under share Non-
Share Share award  Capital  Surplus Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium  scheme  reserve  reseves  reserve losses Total interests equity
it
RbER:
Re  ROER SENRG  EARE  BBRE  EHRE  ZHER ai FEhEE  AEE
RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RWMBOO0  RMB'OOD  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBI0O0  RMB'OO0  RMBIO00
MRETT ARBTL ARETR ARETr ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note 29(c)  (Note 29()) (Note 29(c) - (Note 29(c)) (Note 29()v)
(Wto9t) (Wt 29dp) (ko9idm) (it 200m) (B9
53560 599,2% (1627 26982 149020 (703 (a86.300) 433228 - AR
- - - - - - bragr  (r3gre) (40975 (614953
3498 119466 - - - - - 1694 - 156904
7499 68,376 - - - - - 15875 19,205 9,080
- - - 1 - - - 1,772 - 1,1
- - 1627 (] - - 145 - - -
4997 187,882 1621 - - - 145 2346M 19206 253816
98057 787,138 - 269 149020 (1703 (1160188 93861 pLm 7209

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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Balance at 1 January 2016

Changes in equity for 2016:

Loss and total comprehensive income

for the year

Effect on equiy arising fom
acqistion of adaftional inferest
na subsiclary

Effect on equty arising from capitalinection
from non-controling equty shareholder

into a subsiciary
Issuance of shares (Note 29(0()
Equty-settled share-based
transaction (Note 26)

Balance at 31 December 2016

The notes on pages 54 to 151 form part of these financial

statements.

R-8-AE-A-Rzk

]
HERRREEN 4

*

Bkl (Bt 290))
% RN BRI RS
(Hizx26)

RE-AETZA=1-R

=S
248

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREER

for the year ended 31 December 2016 BZ=Z—"F+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB)  (LAAREEZIR)

Attributable to equity shargholders of the Company
KLARRRRER

Non-

Share Share  Capital  Surplus Other Accumulated controlling Total

capital  premium  reserve  reseves  reserve losses Total  interests equity
BE  BHEE ERBE  BARE  RERE  EHER ait FOREE  £RE
RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMB'OOO  RMBOO0  RMBIOO0  RMBOOD  RMBI0O0  RWBIOO0
NeETT ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR

(Note 29(c)) ~ (Note 29(c) (Note 29(d(i) (Note 29(c)i) (Note 29(d){v)

(Fo9e)) (o) (REskoaidmm) (Bisk20iam) (MzE20id)
W57 OB 2608 1900 (703 (160433 93 @70 7209
- - - - - (1604 (16604 (63763 (240367)
- - - -2 Y. | -
- - - - - - - ¢/ 2
065 241N - - - TR -
- -1 - - -1 -1
05 IR 1M -0 - BT (%) 254889
108200 1021270 208055 149020 (4810) (1367 175007 (@834 86613

FE54BE 151 EMEARTBHRKRZ —#D -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
LEHESRER

for the year ended 31 December 2016 HBZE—F—RFT-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB) (LA AER¥EZII7R)

2016 2015
—B-AE —ZT—hF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE ARBETT ARETTT
Operating activities RETEE
Loss before taxation R AR (265,879) (631,217)
Adjustments for: SA TR IEEH R
Depreciation and amortisation e K 7(0) 27,196 29,943
Impairment losses AR 6 33,404 312,288
Write-down of inventories FEMOR 17(b) 12,205 133,903
Finance costs BhE RN 7(a) 85,288 48,732
Interest income MEKA (1,879) (530)
Net gain on disposal of property, plant HEME - KREREZER
and equipment and assets classified DERFEHEEER
as held-for-sale Wz 558 5 (15,070) (8,720)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —fEH B A Rz e - (39,409)
Loss on financial guarantee BRAFTE N B ER
contracts issued B HIREE 28 30,965 =
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses A E LARR D &
M RRE 7(b) 11,073 1,772
Changes in working capital: EBESED
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD /(5 m) 24,896 (14,392)
(Increase)/decrease in trade B 5 K E Ath e GRIE
and other receivables (3Em), wd (35,923) 82,823
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 I B At fE < 5RIAHE N 2,087 41,535
Changes in working capital of held-for-sale ~ #H{EHEZEENAE
assets and liabilities HEESE 20,320 -
Cash used in operations REMARS (71,317) (43,272)
Income tax paid BEEH - (1,875)
Net cash used in operating activities RETEETARSEE (71,317) (45,147)
Investing activities RETEE
Payments for purchase of property, BEME  BERIENARL
plant and equipment and intangible assets B EENRK (30,006) (65,309)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWZE - BE REED
plant and equipment Fr1S 508 - 10,684
Proceeds from disposal of assets and ENBARELEEE
liabilities classified as held-for-sale K EEZASRIE 19(b) 4 82,027
Deposits received for disposal of assets MR EDBARELE
classified as held-for-sale BEMEENES 3,226 24,202
Cash and cash equivalents acquired through 175 38 U B — B /B8 2 &) B Uk B
the acquisition of a subsidiary miRe RS EEIER - 3,275
Cash and cash equivalents reclassified BENOBEARELENR
as assets held-for-sale MIREEMEAE - (400)
Transaction costs in connection BB — R B AR
with the acquisition of a subsidiary BRAMNR S - (617)
Payments for disposal of subsidiaries, net of  HEMEBA R - FEk
cash disposal of HERNRS - (4
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits  Z IR TR (L HN), R4 (408) 2,906
Interest received EUERF 2 22 530
Net cash (used in)/generated BEES (FTH)  ELXRESFE
from investing activities (27,162) 57,394

The notes on pages 54 to 151 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HEEHESRER

for the year ended 31 December 2016 BZ=Z—"F+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB)  (AAREFIR)

2016 2015
—E-REF —T—RHF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARET T ARETTT
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds of new bank and other loans FIBRIT R EMER
2 FT1S5RIE 175,056 313,359
Repayment of bank and other loans ERRBITREMER (153,294) (442,934)
Proceeds from the issuance of shares, net BITRMFTSECA -
of transaction costs IR R SR AN - 156,964
Capital injection from non-controlling IR EE
equity shareholder 32 -
Proceeds from the issuance of secured notes, 2178 IR ZIEFT 157008
net of transaction costs IR R AN - 118,683
Proceeds from the issuance of convertible BT ARE S FTSFOA
bonds, net of transaction costs IR R SR AN - 59,278
Payments for acquisition of non-controlling FFUEER — M B A RA
interests in a subsidiary in prior years IR MR 2 TR (1,702) =
Finance costs paid BT E A (33,715) (29,914)
Net cash (used in)/generated BEEE (FTR) ELE
from financing activities BHEFE (13,623) 175,436
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HeRBELEEER
and cash equivalents CR2) /g R4 (112,102 187,683
Cash and cash equivalents at1 January R—B—B2ZHER
RE&EEER 21 195,632 6,858
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREE) &% 6,472 1,091
Cash and cash equivalents Rt+t-—A=+—HZzEHEEK
at 31 December Re&%EER 21 90,002 195,632

The notes on pages 54 to 151 form part of these financial F 54 HE 151 BN AR KR 2 —#5 °
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 53R 3R M5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (Bx 3 &SN » AANEREEFIR)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 21 May 2008 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company were
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 24 September 2010. The
consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2016 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”).

The principal activities of the Group are the
manufacture and sale of axles and related
components, and the trading of goods through
operation of an electronic distribution platform,
mobile applications and other related means in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and
revised HKFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c)
provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these financial statements.

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016 comprise the
Group.

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is
the historical cost basis except for derivative
financial instruments which are stated at their
fair values (see Note 2(f)).

Non-current assets and disposal groups held-
for-sale are stated at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell (see
Note 2(w)).

The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgments about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed
in Note 3.

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

LR ST E e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016,
the Group had incurred net loss of
RMB240,367,000 and net cash used in
operating activities of RMB71,317,000, and
as at 31 December 2016, the Group had
net current liabilities of RMB137,785,000.
Notwithstanding of the above, taken
into consideration the net proceeds of
HK$569,004,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB506,670,000, after deducting the
transaction costs) in total obtained from the
placing of 138,888,000 and 151,515,000
new shares of the Company completed
in December 2016 and January 2017
as described in Notes 29(c)(ii) and 34(a),
respectively, and based on a cash flow forecast
of the Group for the twelve months ending 31
December 2017 prepared by the management,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the Group would have adequate funds
to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due
at least twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. Accordingly, the directors
of the Company consider it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements
on a going concern basis.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group.
None of these developments have had a
material effect on how the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods
have been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held
by the Group and other parties) are considered.

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
interests in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed
any additional terms with the holders of those
equity interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those equity interests that meets
the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s equity interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative equity interests, but no adjustments
are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
equity interests in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any equity interests retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see Note 2()
(i), unless the investment is classified as held-
for-sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held-for-sale) (see Note 2(w)).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the
acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities measured
as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses (see Note 2(j)(ii). Goodwill
arising on a business combination is allocated
to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see Note 2(j)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the
profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

(9)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Note 2(j)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (see Note 2(v)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual values, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Estimated useful lives

Plant and buildings 20 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Motor vehicles and 3-5 years

other equipment

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

LR ST E e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the estimated useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually. No depreciation is provided in respect
of construction in progress until it is completed
and ready for its intended use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
Expenditure on research and development
activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the
Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
finite) and impairment losses (see Note 2(j)(ii).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated
useful lives are as follows:

Domain name
Exclusive income right

5 years
3 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or
a series of transactions, is or contains a lease
if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return
for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the
Group
Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Payments made on the acquisition
of land held under an operating lease
are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see
Note 2(j)(ii)). Amortisation is charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease term.
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2

(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@)

Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of receivables

Receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss
events:

= significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in payments;

- it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; and

= significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, for trade
and other receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective
group.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of receivables
(continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in
respect of receivables, whose recoveries
is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against the receivables
directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BT ER 2R Y 5

(FRZAERBS - AARESITR)

2 EARESHEEE)

() EEREGE

(i)

FEWRR IR E (])

MR EEHE - BEBESFRD - B
iR A AR EBRRBEENEMHE
BME QS eBaRBERMERIE -
BROBEBERINSEREERMERSB
ENBEFEEREEABMERREN
TIREETENEER °

BEEREARRNEEEREN I
B8 AT Uiz [ 14 45 4% 7 A] SRR B30 JF AT BE M
1 i 3ot M 7 T R0 P O LS 1R BR D ©
FERBERT - RERBEREIRIAREK B
AR MASRERSKERAKESE
i AR NI E Y 2 BR R 1 R UK
AR EERIRE  MEZBERBMARE
BREATASEASTERD - H&KE A
TR BERB MR SERBERE T
LATBE [B] - 5% 5 ik 1) EL At B B Je AR R[]
FER BRI TR N B RIER

BESHEMERAT —TAEEEHL @



Notes to the Financial Statements

LR ST E e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land
classified as being held under an
operating lease;

- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’'s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS 3R R B 5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B BB » AARESR)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EAEFEE(E)
(CONTINUED)
() Impairment of assets (continued) () ZEEREGE)
(i) Impairment of other assets (i) HaEEREE)

(continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

(B2 A - AARKT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and
impairment
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial year
(see Notes 2())(i) and 2(j)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This
is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at
the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised
as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

U]

(m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see Note 2())(i)), except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see Note 2(j)(i)).

Convertible bonds
Convertible bonds which do not contain an
equity component are accounted for as follows:

At initial recognition the derivative components
of the convertible bonds are measured at fair
value as derivative financial instruments (see
Note 2(f)). Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the derivative
components are recognised as the liability
components. Transaction costs that relate to
the issue of the convertible bonds are allocated
to the liability and derivative components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds. The
portion of the transaction costs relating to the
liability components are recognised initially
as part of the liability. The portion relating to
the derivative components are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The derivative components are subsequently
remeasured in accordance with Note 2(f).
The liability components are subsequently
carried at amortised cost. The interest expense
recognised in profit or loss on the liability
components are calculated using the effective
interest method.

If the bonds are converted, the carrying
amounts of the derivative and liability
components are transferred to share capital
and share premium as consideration for the
shares issued. If the bonds are redeemed,
any difference between the amounts paid and
the carrying amounts of both components is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2

(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

()

(q)

Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value, and are subsequently
stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid
annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present
values.

The Group’s contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans are charged
to profit or loss when incurred, except to
the extent that they are included in the
cost of inventories not yet recognised
as an expense or cost of construction in
progress not yet transferred to property,
plant and equipment.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXREFHEEE)
(CONTINUED)
(q) Employee benefits (continued) (@ EERF(E)
(i) Share-based payments (ii) uﬂﬁﬁi’%gﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁm

- Share option scheme

The fair value of share options
granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in a capital
reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using
the Binomial Option Pricing Model,
taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the share
options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share
options, the total estimated fair
value of the share options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the
share options will vest.

During the vesting period, the
number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year
of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of the share options
that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the share option
is exercised (when it is included in
the amount recognised in share
capital for the shares issued) or
the share option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXREFHEEE)
(CONTINUED)
(q) Employee benefits (continued) (@ EERF(E)
(i) Share-based payments (continued) (i) UARPBEREMNSTRE)
—  Share award scheme —  RHEREE

The shares awarded under the
share award scheme are acquired
from open market. The net
consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental
costs, is presented as “Shares held
under share award scheme” and
deducted from equity.

For shares granted under the share
award scheme, the fair value of
shares granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in
capital reserve within equity. The
fair value is based on the closing
price of the Company’s shares
on grant date plus any directly
attributable incremental costs.
Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the
shares, the total fair value of the
shares is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the
probability that the shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the
number of shares that is expected
to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit
or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve.
On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual
number of shares that vest with a
corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

Employee benefits (continued)
(i) Share-based payments (continued)

- Share award scheme (continued)
When the awarded shares are
transferred to the awardees upon
vesting, the related weighted
average acquisition cost of the
awarded shares vested are credited
to “Shares held under share award
scheme”, and the grant date fair
value of the awarded shares vested
are debited to the capital reserve.
The difference between the related
weighted average acquisition
cost and the grant date fair value
of the awarded shares vested
is transferred to retained profits
directly.

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised
at the earlier of when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment
of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to business combinations,
or items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.
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2

(BREARBI - RARKETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that
they will reverse in the future.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and are
not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee
is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. The fair
value of financial guarantees issued at
the time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or
is otherwise estimated by reference to
interest rate differentials, by comparing
the actual rates charged by lenders when
the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of
such information can be made. Where
consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received
or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued
(continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with Note
2(s)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call
upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (i) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee
i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent
liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other
liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required,
or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 53R 3R M5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (Bx 3 &SN » AANEREEFIR)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the
customer has accepted the goods
and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any sales discounts.
No revenue is recognised if there are
significant uncertainties regarding
recovery of the consideration due, the
possible return of goods, or continuing
management involvement with the
goods.

(ii) Service income
Service income from the rendering of
services is recognised when the related
services are rendered.

(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest
method.

(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in
the statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for
the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised
in profit or loss over the useful life of the
asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u)

v)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 53R 3R M5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (Bx 3 &SN » AANEREEFIR)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXREFBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(w) Non-current assets held-for-sale (w) BEHEZFRBEE

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is
classified as held-for-sale if it is highly probable
that its carrying amount will be recovered
through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal
group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of
assets to be disposed of together as a group
in a single transaction, and liabilities directly
associated with those assets that will be
transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held-for-sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale are
met, regardless of whether the Group will retain
a non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after
the sale.

Immediately before classification as held-for-
sale, the measurement of the non-current
assets (and all individual assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date in
accordance with the accounting policies before
the classification. Then, on initial classification
as held-for-sale and until disposal, the non-
current assets (except for certain assets as
explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. The
principal exceptions to this measurement
policy so far as the financial statements of the
Group and the Company are concerned are
deferred tax assets and financial assets (other
than investments in subsidiaries). These assets,
even if held-for-sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set
out elsewhere in Note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification
as held-for-sale, and on subsequent
remeasurement while held-for-sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-
current asset is classified as held-for-sale, or is
included in a disposal group that is classified
as held-for-sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2016

EERBEE (RHEEAR) < REERE AT
EEBEERZMIBRBREERNE L EZ
BE (M EHER)ER AT HHERRE - AEniE
REFERE - HEAREE AR ZH R
ERRZR T RZEFEEERABCAE—
REL 7 —HEE -

BARAEEAGEETHE BB AREGIE
HEHEIE  TRAKERSHNHERRE
ZB AR ZFE R - A B RRINAE
BERBBERNA LA BRFELEZ
FREREIBARELE -

ERDBERFTELE 2R FRPEE (KL
SHMTFANERNEERAR) ZFEAD
RIBR D BRIFTERAZ @5t EREREF - 1R D
BRFFELHEREEHENH  FRDEE
(NPt s TEERSN) s EERIIRE R
EE & AR E AT NEIEEDR - %
SAAERERERARE AR N FBRERPH
—LBEBMPIIN  ELEERBEENIRE
E BRHERARREZINEHMEE - BLE
ERERHEHE - BB ERRMT 2P At e
SRTBRATE °

MRDERFERERERNENFTEMESE
HREE B ERRPER - —B—HERD
BEROEARFHEXBERFLEMNT
SHEAF - ZRIFRBDEENTBIHRTER



2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x) Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are
members of the same group.

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(v  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

@).

(vl A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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2

(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

(v)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies
(continued):

(vii) The entity, or any member of a
group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel
services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

(a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Notes 15, 26 and 30 contain information about
the assumptions and their risk factors relating
to goodwill impairment, fair value of share
options granted and financial instruments.
Other key sources of estimation uncertainly are
as follows:

(i) Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets
If circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of a tangible or intangible asset
may not be recoverable, the asset
may be considered “impaired”, and an
impairment loss may be recognised.
The carrying amounts of tangible and
intangible assets are reviewed periodically
or when indications are identified in
order to assess whether the recoverable
amounts have declined below the
carrying amounts. When such a decline
has occurred, the carrying amount is
reduced to the recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater
of the fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In determining the
value in use, expected future cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to the level
of revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of the
recoverable amount, including estimates
based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of the level
of revenue and amount of operating
costs. Changes in these estimates
could have a significant impact on the
recoverable amount of the assets and
could result in additional impairment
charge or reversal of impairment in future
periods.
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(@) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Write-down of inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. The
management estimates the net realisable
value based on all available information,
including the current market information
of the inventory items. Any changes
in these estimates would increase or
decrease the amount written-down or
reversal of amount written-down.

Impairment of receivables

The management maintains an allowance
for doubtful accounts for estimated
losses resulting from the inability of the
debtors to make the required payments.
The management bases the estimates
on the ageing of the individual receivable
balance, debtor credit-worthiness and
historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of the debtors were
to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be
higher than estimated.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets are recognised
for unused tax losses and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the deferred
tax assets can be utilised. In determining
the amount of deferred tax assets to
be recognised, significant judgement is
required relating to the timing and level
of future taxable profits, after taking into
account future tax planning strategies.
The amount of deferred tax assets
recognised at future dates are adjusted if
there are significant changes from these
estimates.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

(b)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the
manufacture and sale of axles and related
components, and the trading of goods through
operation of an electronic distribution platform,
mobile applications and other related means in
the PRC.

The Group’s customer base is diversified.
There were three customers with whom
transactions exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: three customers). Revenue
from sales to these customers amounted
to RMB270,973,000 for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: RMB75,655,000).
Details of concentrations of credit risk arising
from the Group’s customers are set out in Note
30(a).

Further details regarding the Group’s principal
activities are disclosed below.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by lines of
business. In a manner consistent with the way
in which information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following two reportable
segments:

° Axle business: this segment
manufactures and sells axles and related
components to truck manufacturers and
after-sales services market.

° E-commerce business: this segment
trades goods through electronic
distribution platform, mobile applications
and other related means.

No operating segments have been aggregated
to form the above reportable segments.
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4

(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and

liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s
most senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated
to the reportable segments with
reference to revenue generated by those
segments and expenses incurred by
those segments. No inter-segment sales
have occurred for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015. The Group’s
other operating expenses, such as selling
and distribution expenses, administrative
expenses, research and development
costs, impairment losses and finance
costs, are not measured under individual
segments. The measure used for
reporting segment result is gross profit/
(loss).

Segment assets and liabilities include all
assets and liabilities with the exception
of assets and liabilities classified as held-
for-sale, bank and other loans, secured
notes, convertible bonds and unallocated
corporate assets and liabilities.

Information regarding the Group’s
reportable segments as provided to
the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 is
set out below.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARD RS ()
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) ZWFHE(E)
() Segment results, assets and (i) 2HEE EEREE(H)
liabilities (continued)
2016
—E-RE
E-commerce
Axle business Total
business EY
BBER HMEER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET R AR¥TR
Revenue from external REMPEEHBA
customers and reportable RuHEIBERA
segment revenue 83,380 302,088 385,468
Reportable segment gross loss TR %2 HEE (7,155) (5,557) (12,712)
Reportable segment assets AREIDEE 171,560 233,800 405,360
Reportable segment liabilites ~ FRE D HEE 173,524 36,004 209,528
2015
—Z-1F
E-commerce
Axle business Total
business B
EXEESTA MEEH FeHS
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT AREFTT
Revenue from external REMPEEHBA
customers and reportable RuHELBERA
segment revenue 127,183 43,172 170,355
Reportable segment gross loss TR %2 HEH (159,131) (674) (159,805)
Reportable segment assets TREDHEE 189,824 342,551 532,375
Reportable segment liabilites ~ F#R&E D HEE 126,143 24,014 150,157
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (Bx 3 &SN » AANEREEFIR)
4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARDEHE (8)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) ZWFHE(E)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable (i) AHREIBEEREBENHIER
segment assets and liabilities
2016 2015
—E-RF —hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFIT
Assets BE
Reportable segment AR DA EE
assets 405,360 532,375
Assets classified as DEARFEHENEE
held-for-sale 70,398 240,920
Unallocated head office ROBBH R AREE
and corporate assets 302,961 54,950
Elimination of receivables &% &8 & 7 2R EA 4850 2
between segments, il FE LR TE O 48
and segments and
head office (44,882) (62,127)
Consolidated total assets 4RA A& E 733,837 776,118
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment ARE D EE
liabilities 209,528 150,157
Bank and other loans IRITREMER 195,665 171,904
Liabilities classified HERFEHEN AR
as held-for-sale - 167,278
Secured notes BEMRRE 141,161 128,271
Convertible bonds AR ES 115,976 80,409
Unallocated head office b AN e /NI =E
and corporate liabilities 29,776 58,135
Elimination of payables B RS uBEﬁi%[@ b
between segments, 2 eI ERIE
and segments and Epfwis
head office (44,882) (62,127)
Consolidated total liabilities #r& A (& 647,224 704,027
(i) Geographic information (iii) HbiHER
All of the revenue of the Group for the AEERBEE_Z—RFR= A

years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015 were generated from sales to
customers in the PRC. All of the non-
current assets of the Group are either
physically located or allocated to
operations in the PRC.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B BB » AARESR)

OTHER INCOME 5 HfslgA
2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Net gain on disposal of HEME - BRERE&ER
property, plant and equipment SEARELEEEZ
and assets classified Wz F5E
as held-for-sale 15,070 8,720
Government grants BT e B 1,075 950
Others HAth 6,661 (172)
22,806 9,498
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 6 IREESE
2016 2015
—E-RF —E-AhF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Impairment losses on property, Yz BB REEZ
plant and equipment (Note 12) WEEE (M 12) 13,746 53,675
Impairment losses on trade and B 5 R E A EUGRIAR
other receivables (Note 18(b)) B EE (KT 18(0)) 18,249 262,643
Reversal of impairment losses FENHEEFRIEZRE
on lease prepayments (Note 13) fEE Rl (FiFE13) - (4,030)
Impairment losses on assets PEAFIEHEEEL
classified as held-for-sale SEREE 1,409 =

33,404 312,288
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (Bx 3 &SN » AANEREEFIR)

7  LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 7 BREAER
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: MR AT E R A TN R IARES ¢
2016 2015
AL —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
(a) Finance costs: (a) RERRA:
Interest on bank and other loans RITREMERFE 17,090 20,410
Finance charges on BHERERIBER
secured notes 21,459 10,426
Finance charges on convertible AIMRESFMEER
bonds (Note 25) (FF5E25) 12,166 5,810
Total borrowing costs BEKA A 50,715 36,646
Net foreign exchange loss SNEE B 1R 5 7,987 896
Changes in fair value on the AIMRESFITETA
derivative components of o R TEEE
convertible bonds (Note 25) (FzE25) 26,586 11,190
85,288 48,732
No borrowing costs have been capitalised for HEZZ-—R"FT_A=+T—HLFE TEEX
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: {LEFEA(ZE—RF : AREZTT) -
RMBNIl.
2016 2015
AL —T-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTRT ARETTT
(b) Staff costs*: (b) BIA*:
Salaries, wages and e TEREMEF
other benefits 53,822 72,065
Contributions to defined MR E HFCGRIK
contribution retirement plans ST 3,189 4,717
Equity-settled share-based BB R B R
payment expenses in respect HEEURNRER 2
of share option scheme SRE X (FisE26)
(Note 26) 11,073 -
Equity-settled share-based B AR RN T B s
payment expenses HEE AR D BER 2
in respect of share award e 3
scheme - 1,772

68,084 78,654
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7 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Staff costs*: (continued)

The employees of the subsidiaries of the
Group established in the PRC (excluding
Hong Kong) participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes managed by the
local government authorities, whereby these
subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
schemes at rates ranging from 18% to 20%
of the employees’ basic salaries. Employees
of these subsidiaries are entitled to retirement
benefits, calculated based on a percentage of
the average salaries level in the PRC (excluding
Hong Kong), from the above mentioned
retirement schemes at their normal retirement
age.

The Group also operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by an independent trustee.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$”) 30,000. Contributions to the
MPF Scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no further material obligation for
payment of other retirement benefits beyond
the above contributions.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRSH A - MARKETIR)

7 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 7 BREIRIEE (&)
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
(c) Other items: (c) HftEA :
Cost of inventories* (Note 17(b)) FEA (HRE17(0) 397,139 329,831
Auditor’s remuneration 2% E5 R B 2,000 2,100
Depreciation and amortisation* e R sH
(Notes 12, 13 and 14) (ffzE12 - 183 % 14) 27,196 29,943
Operating lease charges in BRAMERNKEHEER
respect of properties 7,728 6,917
¢ Cost of inventories includes RMB18,026,000 g REBZEZF—NFELZH=+—HIFEA FEX
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: eI ELE TR LR AT B R a5 5 5% 5 BRI A R
RMB28,656,000), relating to staff costs, and 18,026,000 (= F—FHF : AR 28656,0007T) ' H
depreciation and amortisation expenses, which B2 BEINE BEIEHE LR BT 7(b) Bt 5 2B 7 E R E
amount is also included in the respective total B)E EAEREA ©

amounts disclosed separately above or in Note
7(b) for each of these types of expenses.

8 INCOME TAX 8 FrEM

(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement (a) #HMEBREREMEEARERANFEHRS
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income represents:

2016 2015
AL —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Deferred taxation EEHIE (MiEE27(a)) :
(Note 27(a)):
Origination and reversal TR R A E A R E
of temporary differences (25,512) (16,264)
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INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and (b)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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ARSI RE

(BRBERBS - AAREFITR)

8 FREH ()

accounting loss at applicable tax rates:

Loss before taxation

Expected tax on loss before
taxation, calculated at the
rates applicable to profits
in the jurisdictions concerned
(Notes (i), (i) and (iii))

Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses

Tax effect of (reversal of)/
deductible temporary
differences not recognised
for deferred tax

Tax effect of unused tax losses
not recognised

Income tax

Notes:

BRI E1E

HRBERN BB R EEER G
R R ST EBR T AT B B R TBAT
FRIE (BEE ) ~ (i) B (i)

AN OS2

BB BB KRR (E),/
AR E R OR BT E

AERRF AV EBENTRE T E

PriSH

paz -

(i) The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group ()
incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% for the year ended
31 December 2016 (2015: 16.5%). No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made,
as the Company and the subsidiaries of the
Group incorporated in Hong Kong did not have
assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:

RVBN).

(ii) The Company and the subsidiaries of the (i)
Group incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands, respectively, are not
subject to any income tax pursuant to the rules
and regulations of their respective countries of

incorporation.

(i) The subsidiaries of the Group established in the (i)
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) are subject to PRC
Corporate Income Tax rate of 256% for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: 25%).

(iv) One of the Group’s subsidiaries established in (iv)
the PRC has obtained approval from the relevant
tax bureau to be taxed as an enterprise with
advanced and new technologies for the calendar
years from 2016 to 2018 and therefore enjoyed
a preferential PRC Corporate Income Tax rate
of 16% for the year ended 31 December 2016

(2015: 15%).

BUEM X EE B RRE AP R HHR

2016 2015
—E-REF TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARET T
(265,879) (631,217)
(57,779) (149,972)
18,190 222
(13,019) 98,851
27,096 34,635
(25,512) (16,264)

KR 7] RRE A 7 5 K BB 2 Al &
BoFANFEfF A=+ —HIFEEK16.5%
ZE—AF : 16.5%) I EHNEEFIEH
BRA LR 7] R A EBRE B E ML 94 B2 Al
REE—F—NEF+ - HA=—+—FHIFFEHER

fFHaT e (—FE—0aF - ARKZET) -

DI G 8 FEE R B R K7 B At K T YK
7] R AR IE B[/ 23 AR 155 B At A 7 B 5 e 4
B R Z A AR BT 8

AEER P B (T EIEEE) I A E 2 7l
ECEFENFF A=, HIFFERZ25% (=
F—RF : 25%) B FHA T BILEHIFH -

R EE (B R BB ST BT B A Al — B B AR
BB EE = F—NF2 T — \FEFIEA
AR RN  Fl REZE=F—NF
= A=+ —HIFFERPEPEFEHERN
K15% (=—F—FF : 15%)##% °
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (Bx 3 &SN » AANEREEFIR)

9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9 EEH
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section RIFEFB RN FUEHIE 383N IR AR (FEEERE
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and BERDRPIFE 2 HENESEHMMOT ¢

Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2016
=
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme based
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Sub-total payments Total
A4 DYSYiE
ESHE  RENEA BETAL  BiRGHEIHS gt BBBRR fazt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMFR  ARMTR  ARWTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR

(Note)
(H3t)
Executive directors ez
Mr. Cheng Jerome Cheng Jerome 755 - 250 - - 250 2,076 2,326
Mr. Yuan Weitao REREE - 794 - 35 829 2,076 2,905
Non-executive directors FuTES
Mr. Feng Xiaohui resigned BELE (WZF-1E
on 29 Apri 2016) BAZTAREE) - - - - - - -
Mrs. Guo Yan PEat - 250 - - 250 2076 2,3
Ms. Dong Ying, Dorothy resigned  E& 4%+ (=515
on 17 February 2016) “AttRED) - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Wong Chi Keung B RS - 250 - - 250 - 250
Mr. Liu Erhfei ARk - 250 - - 250 - 250
Mr. Chan Chi Keng, Alan BEats - 250 - - 250 - 250
- 2,044 - 35 2,079 6,228 8,307
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (& BA &SN - UAREFIR)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 9 EE=HM (&)
2015
—3-1f
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors”  and benefts  Discretionary scheme based
fees inkind bonuses  contributions Sub-total payments Total
&g WRAA
E2e  REDEN REFL  RiGralis Nt ERONR k)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETT ARETE  ARETT  ARETRE  ARETR  ARETR
Executive directors UiEs
Mr. Cheng Jerome (appointed ~ Cheng Jerome 76 (18 =3 — 1
on 25 March 2015 ZRZTRAEZRH) - 666 29 - 915 - 915
Mr. Yuan Weitao (appointed RERRE(WN-F-1F
on 25 March 2015) =Rt RAEER) 624 - 4 665 - 665
Mr. Wong Kwai Mo fesigned ~~ TEBEE(R-F-1F
on 25 March 2015) ZAZTRAER) - - - - = -
Ms. Wu Ching (resigned fFat(NF-1%
on 16 June 2015) NATARED) 288 = = 288 = 288
Mr. Lai Fengeal resigned BEVEE(W-Z-1F
on 25 March 2015) ZRZTHAET) 395 - 15 40 1,772 2182
Non-executive directors FuTES
Mr. Feng Xiaohui (appointed BELE(W=3-1F
on 25 March 2015) SRt RREER) - - - - - -
Mrs. Guo Yan (appointed oL (R=E-1E
on 25 March 2015) ZA-TRHEZA) - - - - - -
Ms. Dong Ying, Dorothy (esigned  £B& L (R=F—7&
on 17 February 2016) “AttRET) - - - = = -
Independent non-executive ~ BUFLTES
directors
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (appointed ~ 2874 (R=5—RF
on 25 March 2015) =BT HAEER) 185 - - 185 - 185
Mr. Liu Erhfei fappointed A-Mik(W=3-1F
on 25 March 2015) A= tRAEZR) 185 - - 185 - 185
Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Alan BERTE(RN-F-1F
(appointed on 25 March 2015) =B+ R REZ{) 18 - - 185 - 185
Mr. Zhu Weizhou (resigned AENEEMZT-1E
on 25 March 2015) ZB=THAET) 20 - - 2 - 20
Dr. Li Xuging (resigned HEBT(R=2-1f
on 25 March 2015) ZA-TRAER) - - = - = -
Mr. Chong Ching Hei (resigned ~ HE 14 (W=2-1%
on 25 March 2015) ZRZTHART) 20 = = 2 = 20
2,568 249 56 2,873 1,172 4,645

BERIBEEERAE —E- A FFERS

o
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (Bx 3 &SN » AANEREEFIR)

9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 9

None of the directors waived any emoluments during
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Mr. Wong
Kwai Mo and Dr. Li Xiuging waived emoluments
of RMB288,000 and RMB20,000, respectively). In
addition, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors as an inducement to join, or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office during the year.

Note: These represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the directors under the Company’s share
option scheme. The value of these share options is
measured according to the Group’s accounting policies
for share-based payment transactions as set out in Note

2(q)(i).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of options granted, are
disclosed in Note 26.

10 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
one (2015: three) is a director(s) whose emoluments
are disclosed in Note 9. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the remaining four (2015:
two) individuals who are not directors are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and e R REYRE
benefits in kind

Discretionary bonuses OEIEAL

Share-based payments LARRAD B ERE 2 3R

Retirement scheme contributions BRIRFTEIER

The emoluments of the four (2015: two) individuals
who are not directors and who are among the five
highest paid individuals of the Group are within the
following bands:

EEHM (&)

MEEEREE T "F+_A=1+—HILFE
AREEAGHEM(ZZ—1F  FEEEERTEE
BED BIREFEN A R 288,000 7T & A R E 20,000
TC) © UEAN - AREBERFE RBEE R E = B S AR
SR ENBEAEBSHIEAIMAR R ER B HE -

HiEt < BRFIERIEA L AIREIR 1R B)IR T EE MBI E (L5 B
18 ° SZEREARAE AT (BRI BT AL 2(q) ) #5169 SR B LA R
O REREZ AR B R E -

ZEEYEFIGFE (EIFFR L BREE ZIET K E
B )R 5t 26 7 -

REHMAL

hBEReEFALF HPF—R(ZF—1F: =R)
RESE  REZHFWRMZONE - HRAMNEIFES
WAL (ZZE—01F  MB)WFMHSNT :

2016 2015
— —ZT—h%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

8,223 1,132
616 149
2,076 =
61 73
10,976 1,354

AEERAERSESHFMALTHIETHIBEAL(ZF
—REF  MB) OFMFATERE

2016 2015

—E-REF —E—RF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE AEL

HKS$Nil-HK$1,000,000 ZE L E 1,000,000 7T - 2
HK$2,000,001-HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 77T 2 3,000,000 /87T 2 -
HK$3,000,001-HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 77T 2 4,000,000 /87T 2 -
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11

LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The basic loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2016 is calculated based on
the loss attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB176,604,000 (2015:
RMB573,978,000) and the weighted average

Notes to the Financial Statements
ﬂﬂ%i&%ﬁﬁi

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB - UARETR

11 SREE

(a) EBREAEE
HE—ZT—XF+-_BA=+—HILFE
FATE AR E B iR AN N R 25 IR R e (L B 18
AR #176,604,000c( = —HF: AR
¥ 573,978,0007T ) X F A B B 17 L @AM
#E S 15 201,533,865,0000% ( — E — F £ -

of 1,533,865,000 ordinary shares (2015: 1,365,447,000 IR & AR st E LT -
1,365,447,000 ordinary shares) in issue during
the year, calculated as follows:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares: LB IIRE 2y -
2016 2015
—E-RF —hF
’000 ‘000
T Ti%
Issued ordinary shares R—A—BHEZETHZ B
at 1 January 1,532,727 800,000
Effect of shares issued to RZBE—RAF=A=—+HHMH
new equity shareholders KRB IRRETT
of the Company anlzn)-7
on 25 March 2015 - 471,756
Effect of shares issued RZZE—RF=A=+HAH
on the acquisition g — R B A AR BT T
of a subsidiary R 2
on 25 March 2015 - 94,351
Effect of shares purchased ﬂ?‘d}% & 2B EIE R E
and vested under EEBRMNFE
a share award scheme - (660)
Effect of shares issued B BTN H
(Note 29(c)(ii)) S22 (M 29(c)(i)
1,138 —
Weighted average number of R+ A=+—RAE&@EK
ordinary shares I E
at 31 December 1,533,865 1,365,447
Diluted loss per share (b) SREEER
There were no dilutive potential shares HE_Z—R"Frk-_ZT—HF+-_A=+—8H
outstanding during the years ended 31 IEFE - BHEABEEERUENEITEINR

December 2016 and 2015. The Group’s
convertible bonds (see Note 25) and share
options granted (see Note 26) could potentially
dilute basic earnings/loss per share in the
future, but were not included in the calculation
of diluted loss per share because they are
antidilutive during the year ended 31 December
2016.

0o REEARRES (R HTRE25) MR H
Bt (FF R eE26) AT R RA SR ERR
R,/ BEBKETEE EREANBE_Z
—ANFT_A=t-HALFERABREE I
AMASBREEHENAH -

BESHEMERAT —T AFEEHL e
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (Bx 3 &SN » AANEREEFIR)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 9% BERRE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) FREEYER
Motor
Machinery vehicles
Plant and and  andother Construction
buildings  equipment  equipment in progress Total
ABER

BERET #HEkSk HoXE HRIE et
RVB'O00  RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARETE AREBTT ARETR ARETL

Cost: B
At 1 January 2015 R-Z—hF—F—H 225,752 337,675 15,120 8,727 587,274
Additions NE 2,365 54,856 5,265 1,006 63,492
Additions through acquisition of & :BUEE—FIHTE A ]

a subsidiary R - - 10,332 - 10,332
Reclassified as assets BN ERRHE

held-for-sale HEEE (149,382) (147,249 (11,505) (9,733 (317,869)
Disposals = - (31,299 (571) - (31,870
At 31 December 2015 RZZ—H%F

+=-A=1+—~H 78,735 213,983 18,641 - 311,359

Accumulated depreciation ZEMERAE
and impairment:

At 1 January 2015 RZE—R%5—F—H (122,363)  (249,569) (10,449) (5,801)  (388,182)
Charge for the year FATH (5,547) (14,420) (4,376) - (24,343)
Impairment losses (Note 6) BB (fiE6) (3,768) (45,978) (1,070) (2,859) (53,675)
Reclassified as assets BN BAREE
held-for-sale HEEE 84,753 142,196 10,817 8,660 246,426

Written back on disposals HERD = 17,709 234 - 17,943
At 31 December 2015 R-Z—h%F

+=A=+—§H (46,925)  (150,062) (4,844) - (201,831)
Carrying amount: AREE
At 31 December 2015 R-E—R4E

+=A=+—§H 31,810 63,921 13,797 = 109,528
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Reconciliation of carrying amount

(continued)

Cost:

At 1 January 2016
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2016

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
At 1 January 2016
Charge for the year
Impairment losses
(Notes 6 and 12(b))
Written back on disposals

At 31 December 2016

Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2016

A

RZF—"E—H—H

NE

=

RZZ—F
+=A=+—8H

R ERAME :

I

R=ZE—~¥—HA—H

FAX

R{EEE (36 K& 12(b))

Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS 3R R B 5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 9% - BERRE (F)

(FRZAERBS - AARESITR)

(a) BREEHE (@)
Motor
Machinery vehicles
Plant and and  and other Construction
buildings equipment equipment in progress Total
RER
BERET HERZE HUtRE HRIE ‘st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR%BTR AR®TR AR%®TR AR%TxR
78,735 213,983 18,641 - 311,359
211 10,005 785 - 11,001
- (27,632) (35) - (27,667)
78,946 196,356 19,391 - 294,693
(46,925) (150,062 (4,844) - (201,831)
(2,808) (10,183) (4,647) - (17,638)
(4,504) (8,891) (351) - (13,746)
- 21,484 8 - 21,492
(54,237) (147,652 (9,834) - (211,723)
24,709 48,704 9,557 - 82,970
ERSEEEARAT

—B-AEEEHE @
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b)

()

(d)

For the year ended 31 December 2016, due
to the continusous depressed axle and related
components business in the PRC, the directors
of the Company concluded further impairment
losses on the Group’s cash-generating unit
related to its axle business (the “Axle CGU”)
are required. The directors of the Company
determined the recoverable amount of the
Axle CGU on the basis of fair value less costs
of disposal with reference to the valuation
report issued by an independent valuer, Roma
Appraisals Limited. The independent valuer
has adopted the cost approach on property,
plant and equipment and market comparison
approach on lease prepayments. Accordingly,
an impairment loss of RMB13,746,000 (2015:
RMB53,675,000) on the Group’s property,
plant and equipment was recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

At 31 December 2016, property certificates of
certain properties with a carrying amount of
RMB110,000 (2015: RMB132,000) are yet to
be obtained.

At 31 December 2016, RMB75,316,000 (2015:
RMBNIl) of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment were pledged as securities for an
on-going litigation where certain subsidiaries
of the Group are being sued for repayment of
an overdued loan payable to a third party (see
Note 23(b)).

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2016

12 9% - BERRE (F)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BE-_Z—REF+-_A=+—BI1FE #R
FRBERREFESHHESFEIER AR
AEENTHEASEERESEENREESE
BA((ERBESEESM]) AE—TRHES
B o ARRIEELERB L HEMZESBRE
HERARHEZ HERESEEE - WATE
BHERA 7 EEEFTHEBREELEEMAT
WOs5E - BY GEMESMYE  BENRE
REKAERREMNHEERERATS LR
Eeo A RBE-E—RE+-A=+—H
I FERREPAEBNYE - BE RERED
EE B AR 13,746,000 ( ZE— A5 :
AR 53,675,0007T) °

RIBE—RE+-A=+—0 " HANEER
EAEARK110,000(ZE—HF : AR
132,0007T) B35 T XA EREE -

RZB—RE+-_A=+—0 LiAARK
75,316,000 (T —HF : ARBEZT)H
REEME - HE N REERFSEIREFRAM
G AIETER - RFARAERETHERR
HEX N FE=H B ERUE R L FR
(FBRME23(0)) °



13 LEASE PREPAYMENTS

Cost:
At 1 January 2015
Reclassified as assets held-for-sale

At 31 December 2015

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment:

At 1 January 2015

Charge for the year

Reversal of impairment losses
(Note 6)

Reclassified as assets held-for-sale

At 31 December 2015

Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2015

Cost:
At 1 January 2016 and
31 December 2016

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment:

At 1 January 2016

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2016

Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT ER 2R Y 5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B BB » AARESR)

13 FANHEERE

RS
R-Z—hRFE—HF—H
ENMDEARBIEREEE

R-ZE—RAF+-_A=+—H

ZETEERORE ¢
R-—Z—HF—H—H
FRE M
BEEERERE (FiFE6)

ENMOBEABIELEEE
R-ZE—RF+-_A=+—H

BRMEIE :
R-ZE—RF+-_A=+—H

D% N

R-—E—XF—HA—H
;E=F—R&F+=-_A=+—H

Rt ERIRE

R=—E—X"F—HA—H
FARTH

R=B—AE+=A=+—A

R -
W=F—E+-A=+—A

RMB’000
ARBTT

226,934
(213,108)

13,826

(142,294)
(1,807)

4,030
138,006

11,761

RMB’000
AR®TR

(2,065)
(277)

(2,342)

BESHEMERAT "~ AEEERS
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (Bx 3 &SN » AANEREEFIR)

13 LEASE PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Represented by: 15
Non-current portion ERBNE D
Current portion MBI

Lease prepayments represented land use right
premiums paid by the Group for leasehold land
situated in the PRC.

At 31 December 2016, RMB11,484,000 (2015:
RMBNIl) of the Group’s lease prepayments were
pledged as securities for an on-going litigation where
certain subsidiaries of the Group are being sued for

repayment of an overdued loan payable to a third

party (see Note 23(b)).

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost:

At 1 January 2015

Addition through acquisition
of a subsidiary

At 31 December 2015 and
1 January 2016
Addition

At 31 December 2016

Accumulated amortisation:
At 1 January 2015
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2015 and
1 January 2016

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2016

Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2015

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited

A
RN-ZZE—FHE—HA—8
FEPRUE—RHNBARIANE

RZZE—hF+-A=+—H
k=—F—X"F—H—H
N

RZE—R"F+-_A=+—H
R -
RZZE—hF—A—H
FRZH
RZE—RF+-_A=+—H
k=ZF—RF—H—H
FRLH
RZE—R"F+-A=+—H

BREE :
R-ZE—RF+-A=+—H

RZE—RF+-_A=+—H

Annual Report 2016

13

14

FEHEERE (&)

2016 2015

—E—RF —ET—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREF T

11,207 11,484

277 277

11,484 11,761

BNEERREAEERUNTE 2 HEL DR
B L AEHES

R—_ZE—RNE+_A=+—"H ' BARE
11,484,000 c(ZZE—HF : AREZT)NAEE
HEBEMNZERFEREFRAMEFRSTHR - B
HAPRAEEE THEAREAYN FE=Fr#E
HIE FE IR R AR A (58 R sE 23(b)) °

BEEE
Exclusive

Domain name income right Total
WA LSELON @st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBFT ARETT
21,917 - 21,917

21,917 - 21,917

- 13,824 13,824

21,917 13,824 35,741
(3,793) - (3,793)

(3,799) - (3,793)
(5,057) (4,224) (9,281)
(8,850) (4,224) (13,074)

13,067 9,600 22,667

18,124 - 18,124
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15

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The intangible assets represent the Group’s electronic
distribution platform, www.CCIGMALL.com, which
the Group acquired through the acquisition of a
business in 2015, and an exclusive income right
obtained in the current year in developing a tailor-
made e-commerce platform for a property developer
to earn revenue from this property developer by
assisting its property sales through the platform.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B R R IZﬁEI

(BRBERBS - AARBTIR

14 EPEE ()

A ERALEBNE T2 8T 4 www.CCIGMALL.
com’ NAEER -ZT—AFHFBWE—TEEEWE
Mk MR AFEESNE—BMEREERET
FIEE TG BBZTAHEYENE MBI
AR BRI AREF

GOODWILL 15 BEE
RMB’000
ARETIT
Cost: AR :
At 1 January 2015 R=—ZFE—RF—A—H -
Addition through acquisition of FHRWE—ENERRIRE
a subsidiary 61,013
At 31 December 2015, 1 January 2016 R =—ZF—AF+-A=+—H -
and 31 December 2016 2 RNF-A-BERZE—"Ft+ZA=1—H 61,013
Accumulated impairment losses: ZEHREERE !
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015, R-ZT—HE—A—H  —E—HF+-A=+—H
1 January 2016 and B RF-AHERZE—XRF+ZA=+—H
31 December 2016 =
Carrying amount: AR
At 31 December 2015 and 2016 RZZ—R"F+=A=+—~1H 61,013

On 25 March 2015, the Group acquired the
51% equity interests of Century Network Holding
Limited (“Century Network”) for a consideration of
RMB76,392,000. The excess of the cost of the
purchase over the net fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired of RMB61,013,000 was recorded
as goodwill and allocated to Century Network’s
E-commerce business (the “E-commerce CGU”).

The recoverable amount of the E-commerce CGU
is determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets prepared by the directors of
the Company covering a five-year period. These
cash flow projections adopted annual growth rates
ranging from 65% to 392% (2015: 80% to 449%),
which are based on the Group’s experience and
future business plans for this business and adjusted
for other factors that are specific to the E-commerce
CGU. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a 3% (2015: 3%) long-term
growth rate, which is based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts. The cash flows are discounted
using a discount rate of 32.4% (2015: 40%). The
discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the E-commerce CGU.

R-ZE—FE=FA-—+FHH  AEEURBARE
76,392,000 JCUBE Century Network Holding Limited
([Century Network]) 51% % # - B Z B AN B
B ZREEFENATLFENEEAREK
61,013,000 ST 72 &k 5 AL ZE Century Network
NETHEEXEE((EFEBHReEESEM]) -

%%ﬁ 218 S EA B W E S 5 BB EHE
Bt EMETE - ZtEER AR A ZESBREAHAKRK
AFENPHEEFERARESREBE - ZEBHER=E
FERR AR FE R R 565% 2 3902% (—T— R F :
%%iM%@'ﬁMKEIﬁ%&E%ﬁmW%&
REEBABAER YR ETHEESELEM
%i%ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬂ BERAFHZBRERE
TR 3% (—Z— R4 : 3%) REIE R RHEH - i
RRDERERBITEEEES - BREREHFA32.4%
—ZE—FF  40%) IR RITIR o FTEEAZ TR
REFRAIMRMEEFEHERCELESENARZE
TFE R o

BESHEMERAT "~ AEEERS
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (Bx 3 &SN » AANEREEFIR)

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 RHEBARZEKRE
The following list contains only the particulars of TREHINEAEEXE  EEXEBEXNETER
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, ZHMBA RS -

assets or liabilities of the Group.

Proportion of ownership interest

FaEaLD
Particulars of
Place of registered/ ~ The Group’s
establishment/ issued and effective Held by the Held by
Name of subsidiaries incorporation paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
) i/ ift/BEAR  A%EN HEAH
HELREHE HMeE  SRRAEHE ERER  ARAMRE e TEER
Beiing Century Fortunet Network The PRC RMB3,000,000 51% - 51%  Trading of goods through electronic
Technology Co., Ltd. * distrioution platform, mobile
applications and other related means
IRt RRERRTERAR G AR3,000,00070 ERETHHETR BEERR
AREMEEA AR SEn
Beiing Century Fortunet Technology The PRC RMB27,000,000 51% - 100%  Maintenance of electronic distrioution
Co., Ltd. * platform and mobile applications
IRt B RERAT H AR 27,000,0007C HESTHET A RBBERRE
Gentury Network The British United States 51% 51% - Investment holding
Virgin Islands Dollar (‘USD’)1
ZEREES 1En(ER) RAHR
Fujian Changfeng Machinery Group The PRC RMB814,300,000 100% - 100%  Manufacture and sale of axles and
Limited Company * related components
BRGERREEERAT G AR%814,300,0007C HERHERRRERT Y
Longyan Shengfeng Machinery The PRC RMB356,000,000 100% - 100%  Manufacture and sale of axles and
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. * related components
EaBSERRERR AR t AR 356,000,000 70 HERHEERRARTHY
Sichuan Changfeng Axle Co,, Ltd. * The PRC RMB160,000,000 100% = 100%  Manufacture and sale of axles and
related components
oI EERARAR t AR 160,000,007 HERHEERRARTHY
* The English translation of the names are for reference * IR IR G LR S S AR o
only and the official names of these entities are in o

Chinese.
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17

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

The following table lists out the combined financial
information of Century Network and its subsidiaries, a
sub-group within the Group, which has material non-
controlling interests (“NCI”). The summarised financial
information presented below represents the amounts
before any inter-company elimination.

Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS 3R R B 5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B BB » AARESR)

16 RKBRFZIKRE (R)

TRIHANER NG EA IS ([ FE i AR
%5 ) KRB Century Network K =t BB A &E A& 6
B ER - THBBERBEE AR EDEMAA R
T SHATRIFRIA o

2016 2015

=F—AF —TRF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBT T

Revenue* o, 302,088 43,172
Loss* il (129,727) (82,410)
Loss attributable to NCI* IR R (G e (63,755) (40,975)
Non-current assets EMBNEE 79,141 58,671
Current assets MENE EE 93,770 229,490
Current liabilities mEBaE (7,850) (19,404)
Non-current liabilities ERBALE (338,291) (317,002)
Net liabilities E=N (173,230) (48,345)
Net liabilities attributable to NCI EEREREGFEE (88,418) (21,770)

* The comparable period in 2015 was from 25 March
2015 (date of acquisition) to 31 December 2015.

INVENTORIES

17

- REE—AFHALEHGE—E—aF=A=—1+#H
(YRR EE—F—AF+—F=1—HI °

rE

(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement
of financial position comprise:

Raw materials R AL
Work in progress ERm

Finished goods BURK
Merchandises for trading R

W RO

Less: write-down of inventories

(a) HREMBRRRNEFEEE

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
38,557 47,014
5,092 7,496
30,042 85,247
3,598 14,013
77,289 153,770
(48,030) (90,166)
29,259 63,604

BESHEMERAT —TAEEEHL @
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRSHE A - MARKETIR)

17 INVENTORIES (CONTINUED) 17 FE(#E)
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) EERABIRFAGSEZREMEZERKE
recognised as an expense and included RNEFEESHEIWWOT :

in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income is

as follows:
2016 2015
—E-REF =R
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Carrying amount of BEEFENREE
inventories sold 384,934 195,928
Write-down of inventories FEMUR 12,205 133,903
397,139 329,831
18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 EFZRHMEWRIE
2016 2015
A —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Trade receivables =) e e 300,540 305,721
Bills receivables e FE & 25,990 12,941
326,530 318,662
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W RERTEE (276,533) (287,583)
49,997 31,079
Prepayments, deposits and TERFIE -~ Re REAEUEOE
other receivables:
— Advances to suppliers — N THERS 2 B K 74,088 78,658
— Value added tax refundable — AR EIEEF 5,293 5,577
— Proceeds receivable for issuance — EURER 1T AR (D MY FTAS 5K 3E (I EE ()
of shares (Note (i) 246,352 -
— Others — HAth 71,420 36,654
397,153 120,889
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W REREE (131,777) (102,478)
265,376 18,411
315,373 49,490
Note (i): As described in Note 29(c)(ii), all of the proceeds from BisE() © 2B 29(c)i) Bt - R=F— 4+ = A=+ H A%
the issuance of shares on 29 December 2016, net of TR B B A BT /220 I8 (HIE RS B K ) R = FE—4F
transaction costs, were received on 6 January 2017. — AAHYER -
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

All of the trade and other receivables, net of
allowance for doubtful debts, are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expenses within one
year.

(a) Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the
ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables
(net of allowance for doubtful debts), included
in trade and other receivables, based on the
invoice date, is as follows:

Within 3 months =@ARN
Over 3 months
but within 6 months

Over 6 months HBid7~E A

At 31 December 2016, trade and bills
receivables of RMB19,920,000 (2015:
RMB14,422,000) have been pledged to secure
the Group’s short-term bank and other loans
(Notes 23(a) and 23(c)).

Details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
in Note 30(a).

(b) Impairment of trade and other receivables
Impairment losses in respect of trade and other
receivables are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against
trade and other receivables directly (see Note

2())(i)-
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18 E5RHtEWRIEA (&)

FTE B 5 M EL Al e SR (FIBR R AR ) RN —
FAW @k RER R o

(@)

@ =1E A E LR/ EA

(b)

RRER D HT

RBER - STABZREMBEIFIA LB S
FE YR IR B M R IE (INER R BME) BN B R
HEHRRE AT

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—FE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
29,314 15,606
19,816 14,821
867 652
49,997 31,079

R-ZZEBE—RNE+-_A=+—8 BHEKZ
B EWZE AR 19,920,000 (= —H
F o AR¥14,422,0007T) BIEFA AR AN E R
R 52 HASR 1T M E b B BUR AR (MI5E 23(a) &
23(c)) °

AEENEEBRRFEHNHFES0(@)

B 5 R HEEREORRE

BRE 5 N E At RUCIR RO BB B 18 2 (5 R R
fiRALE - EARE RSB IR E &
AIRRSN - HRBER TREBBEREE S RH
A P LUK IR AP A (RLBRRE 2()())
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)
(b) Impairment of trade and other receivables
(continued)

18 E5RHtEWRIEA (&)

(b) EZRHtEUEERE ()

The movements in the allowance for doubtful FRREBEOEFHOT :
debts during the year are as follows:
2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREF T
At 1 January wn—HA—H 390,061 288,538
Impairment losses recognised B HERKREREE (F1:E6)
(Note 6) 18,249 262,643
Reclassified as assets ENOEARBIELENEE
held-for-sale - (132,101)
Uncollectible amounts written off 1~ A] Y [8] < &8 fifl 4 - (29,019)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 408,310 390,061
At 31 December 2016, trade and other R-E—XRE+-_A=+—H BEZREMENK

receivables of RMB408,310,000 (2015:
RMB390,061,000) were individually determined
to be impaired. The individually impaired
receivables related to customers and
debtors that were in financial difficulties and
management assessed that these receivables
are irrecoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 EZRHMmEYIE (F)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Trade and bills receivables that are not
impaired
The ageing analysis of trade and bills
receivables that are neither individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

Neither past due nor impaired ~ BX & B IR 5 (B

Less than 3 months past due B = {E A
B AR = A A B DR E A

Over 3 months but within
6 months past due
Over 6 months past due

Receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to bills receivable from the
issuing banks for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of customers that
have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable.

AR A EA

(c) WEBEZEZEUREARERRE

BE 4R {18 3k K R #AR AR BB 2 B 5 FRUGRIA I
PRI 2 REE DT T

2016 2015
=F—AF —TRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARBTE
25,990 12,941
21,154 10,805
1,986 6,681
867 652
24,007 18,138
49,997 31,079

SR 428 380 H 71 A DR 2 B M TR B SR T A A0 R SR
ZFABITREREAM -

BB HERRE BWFRES R EAEEER
RIFBERSRZBUTF AR - REBEBELR =
REEERYEBEARYH MR SFERDEEQAIE
;ﬁﬁﬁfﬂ&z@ CMEEEREBARZFAERELRER

BESHEMERAT "~ AEEERS
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19 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS 19 PEABFEHEZEEREE
HELD-FOR-SALE
(@) The classes of assets and liabilities (a) MBEHRIPEABELEZEEREEBZE
classified as held-for-sale at the end of the Blan TR :

reporting period are as follows:

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment  #1% « 5 & & fE 49,572 120,572
Lease prepayments TEHEEFKRIE 20,826 103,919
Trade and other receivables 85 & H A e SR - 381,988
Other current assets Hibme&EE - 6,619
70,398 613,098
Less: Inter-company receivables & : 4R E M 15 HF ¥ 84
eliminated in the ’9A B e UGR TR
consolidated financial
statements - (872,178)
70,398 240,920
Liabilities afE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E A ERFRIE - 520,679
Bank and other loans RITREMER - 33,400
Other current liabilities HEMnsaE - 291
- 554,370
Less: Inter-company payables & : IR4RE BSR4 850
eliminated in the A RIFE IR
consolidated financial
statements - (387,092)
- 167,278
At 31 December 2016, the disposals of the R-T—XRNE+—-_F=+—H AARBELESD
assets classified as held-for-sale are still in AL EYEERARG AR EETEHLE
progress, and the directors of the Company YA —F — - EERFIK o
expect the disposals to be concluded by the
end of 2017.

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS 3R R B 5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B BB » AARESR)

19 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS 19 DEABFHECEEREE (E)
HELD-FOR-SALE (CONTINUED)
(b) The movements of assets and liabilities (b) PEARFEHECZEENREBRFEANESIIN
classified as held-for-sale during the year T:

are as follows:

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Assets BE
As at 1 January 613,098 190,388
Transfer into held-for-sale REAEBEFIELE
during the year - 542,699
Net decrease while classified as  FR A MO EAFIEL S
in held-for-sale (7,979) (7,948)
Decrease through disposal FHRHEEERD
of assets - (70,064)
Decrease through disposal R E—REHB AR (FEE )
of a subsidiary (Note (i)) (5634,721) (41,977)
As at 31 December R+=—RA=+—8H 70,398 613,098
Liabilities afE
As at 1 January R—HA—H 554,370 26,135
Transfer into held-for-sale REREEHIEHE
during the year - 554,370
Net increase/(decrease) while SR (R MAEARFIELRS
classified as in held-for-sale 323 (749)
Decrease through disposal 76 & — R A alR A (BEE i)
of a subsidiary (Note (i)) (554,693) (25,386)
As at 31 December Rnt+=—A=+—H - 554,370

BESHEMERAT —TAEEEHL @
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19 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS 19 DEABEHECZEERERE (E)

HELD-FOR-SALE (CONTINUED)

(b) The movements of assets and liabilities
classified as held-for-sale during the year
are as follows: (continued)

Note:

(i) On 20 May 2016, the Group disposed of the
entire equity interests in Kaifeng Changfeng Axle
Co., Ltd. (“Kaifeng Changfeng”) and its subsidiary
(together the “Kaifeng Changfeng Group”) and
certain of the Group’s receivables due from the
Kaifeng Changfeng Group to a third party. The
assets and liabilities of the Kaifeng Changfeng
Group were classified as held-for-sale in 2015.
The consideration for the disposal of the entire
equity interests in the Kaifeng Changfeng Group
and the assignment of certain of the Group’s
receivables due from the Kaifeng Changfeng
Group amounted to RMB4,000. The net liabilities
of the Kaifeng Changfeng Group disposed of as
at 20 May 2016 amounted to RMB19,972,000.
Accordingly, the Group recognised a gain on
disposal of assets and liabilities classified as held-
for-sale of RMB19,976,000 in 2016.

Prior to the disposal of the Kaifeng Changfeng
Group, the Group has provided guarantees for
bank loans drawn by the Kaifeng Changfeng
Group. These guarantees will continue to be
valid until two years after the maturities of the
bank loans. The aggregate principal amount
of the bank loans is RMB30,000,000, where
these bank loans had matured on 21 July 2016
and have been overdued since then. Further
details of the Group’s exposure in respect of
these guarantees are set out in Note 28.

(b) PEABFEHECZEEREEREANSEHM
T @ (4)

it -

() R-F—ANEFZA-—FH AEFH—FZE=F
HEFHBGLERERA A ([FHEL) KA
WB R (%5 [t LEE ) K25 RER
BT AL B I+ 85 L2 A FEA S - FE]
15 F i B R B AR = FE— AES BB E
HE o HERIIELEEN 2 RERZZEE T
L FEW FIE 5 L5 A S BB BA R
4,0007T - R=F—NFAA=—+H  EHERHE

L B FE AR 19,972,0007T ° A
FEFR=F—NFRHESBEIFEHEZE
ERE EEZ e AR 19,976,0007T °

REERESGEEEER  AEEERHHBEEE
RERIRITERIRHER - ZFEREFEERE
FRTEFDNPEOMF - RITERNACRRES
AR #30,000,0007T ' MZSRITERER=_Z
—~NFLtAZt+—BIHKEZBRERE - B
AEBMZERREAIZNRRAE —ZF BN
5¥28

20 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 20 CBIEHBITER
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—ARF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARBT T
Pledged bank deposits (Note (i) BEIRIRT TR (BIEE ) 461 53

Note (): These bank deposits were pledged as securities for an
on-going litigation where a subsidiary of the Group is
being sued for payment of previously purchased goods
from a supplier (see Note 22(i), and as securities for
an on-going litigation where certain subsidiaries of the
Group are being sued for repayment of an overdued loan
payable to a third party (see Note 23(b)(ii)).
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22

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and on hand

The Group’s operations in the PRC (excluding Hong
Kong) conduct their businesses in RMB. RMB is
not a freely convertible currency and the remittance

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

21 RERREEEER

RITRFHERAE

of funds out of the PRC (excluding Hong Kong) is
subject to the exchange restrictions imposed by the

PRC government.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables (Note (i)

Payables for construction and
purchase of property, plant
and equipment
Payables for staff related costs
Payables for acquisitions of equity
interests in subsidiaries
of the Group
Payables for miscellaneous taxes
Interest payables
Others

Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost
Deposits received in connection
with disposals of assets classified
as held-for-sale and subsidiaries
Advances received from customers
Provision for warranties

(BBEHBI - UARETIR)
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREBT T
90,002 195,632

22 EBEZRHMEMRER

B 5 0R (KRE()

EREBEYE  BER
AR R S R

8 TR AN B 0R
Lo A 2 [ B 2 B REchE O B A1 R0

FE R
JANEARSN
Hit

REHEXATTENERAE

RHENBARELENEER
F B A B IZ &

B PR
RIERE

AEERTE(TBEEEE) NEHLEAARES
B AREATAERLBNEERESELTE
(TEREEE)AXDERNEENIMNERFIRE

2016 2015
g AY: —T—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
23,431 37,936
2,616 7,797
10,070 11,217

- 5,462

4,160 4,410
13,996 4,408
44,529 26,355
75,371 59,649
98,802 97,585
54,226 51,000
4,818 1,411
1,665 928
159,511 150,924
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SHEFBIN - AANRKEFITR)

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(CONTINUED)

All of the trade and other payables are expected to
be settled or recognised as revenue within one year
or are repayable on demand.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade payables included in trade and other
payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within 3 months =EAR
3 to 6 months =z=,~@A
Over 6 months HBids~E A

Note (): A subsidiary of the Group engaged in the axle
business is being sued by a supplier for payment
on the Group’s previous purchases of goods. The
directors of the Company consider the amount claimed
by the supplier has already been recognised by the
respective subsidiary under trade and other payables,
and accordingly, no additional provision is provided
in respect of the claim. Certain asset is pledged as
securities for the on-going litigation (see Note 20()).
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B 5 RHEMEMTIE (&)
FIBEE S5 KA ﬁﬂFH KIETE BAPY — F N AE E S RER
RWATAR ERMEE
RIMEBRR - TAB S REMENRIBE S ERN
FIBENZEZ A BMERER T ¢
2016 2015
—E—XREF —ZT—hHF
RMB 000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
2,824 7,475
651 6,519
19,956 23,942
23,431 37,936
WIEE () - A5 B — R F B R T 8 2 ﬂ@ﬁ%@ﬁﬁ?ﬂ%
B Bdn 917 3 4 (R IE B FERE T aA © KR BJEF R 73

X (R ER R E % A E %ﬁ/f%’@ﬂf&n ﬁﬁ%&
HERABRT « Bt - iﬂfﬂfyf%%;ﬁfauﬁzﬁgﬁ/‘
B o B TRECHIFIEBZIFE
20()) °




23 BANK AND OTHER LOANS

(@) The Group’s short-term bank and other (a)

loans are analysed as follows:

Bank loans: iR

— Secured by land use rights
and property, plant and
equipment of the Group

— Secured by trade receivables
of the Group

Other loans from third parties:
— Guaranteed by subsidiaries
of the Group
— Secured by bills receivables
of the Group
— Unguaranteed and unsecured

Add: Current portion of Jill
long-term bank and
other loans (Note 23(b))
Non-current portion of
long-term bank loan

Notes to the Financial Statements
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23 BITRHMBER

repayable on demand
(Note 23(b))

The Group’s short-term other loan with
principal amount of RMB20,000,000 was
overdued as at 31 December 2016. The
directors of the Company confirm that the
Group has commenced negotiation with the
lender to renew the loan. The unpaid interest
of the loan as at 31 December 2016 has
been included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016.

AEENEHRITRAMER2HFOT :
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
TER
—HAEEN I FRERYE -
B8R = Mo i A AR
52,400 57,400
—HAEE N E SRR G F
- 12,000
... 52400 69,400
REFE=ZFTHNEMER :
— AL B B A RIER
42,860 30,000
— AN B W S R
19,920 =
— B R N A 52,935 44,504
115715 74,504
168,115 143,904
P RERITER R EME R
mEnEBs (MIEE 23(b))
27,550 13,000
EIRBSMEERNRIART
BRHIEREES (FisE23(0))
- 15,000
195,665 171,904

REBARE 5 A AR 20,000,000 T H) EAh /2 Hi S
FRZE—RE+-_A=1+—HaH  ARTES
BRAEEEHREE S ETERENER - K=
E—RNFt+-A=+—HERNARMF BT AKE
BEHE—_T—A"F+_A=+—BILEENGESH
&R -
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23 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED)

23 RITRHEHMER (H)

(b) The Group’s long-term bank loan is (b) AEENRHBITERDONAOT :
analysed as follows:
2016 2015
ZE-RF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARBTT
Bank loan: RITE :
— Guaranteed by a subsidiary — RSB B ARER
of the Group - 15,000
— Guaranteed by a third party
(Note (i) — B =R () 15,000 -
15,000 15,000
Other loan from a third party: REFE=FHEMER :
— Guaranteed by a subsidiary — B ANES [T A RIHEAR (BT &E (i)
of the Group (Note (ii)) 12,550 -
— Guaranteed by a third party —BE=FER - 13,000
12,550 13,000
27,550 28,000
Less: Current portion of B REISRIT R EME KA mEE D
long-term bank and (Mf3£23(a))
other loans (Note 23(a)) (27,550) (13,000)
Non-current portion of AR EREERIPIRITER
long-term bank loan RIERENER D (BIFE23(a))
repayable on demand
(Note 23(a)) - (15,000)
Notes: KT -
(i) The Group’s long-term bank loan with principal () KEFERAIRITEH A% BEAARKE 15,000,000 %

amount of RMB15,000,000 is subject to the
fulfilment of covenants commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. The loan
is to mature in February 2017. The directors
of the Company confirm that the Group has

commenced negotiation with the lender to renew
the loan. The unpaid interest of the loan as at 31
December 2016 was included in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2016.
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23 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The Group’s long-term bank loan is
analysed as follows: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

The Group’s long-term other loan with principal
amount of RMB12,5650,000 was overdued as at
31 December 2016. Certain subsidiaries of the
Group engaged in the axle business are being
sued by the lender for repayment of the overdued
loan. The directors of the Company confirm
that the Group has commenced negotiation
with the lender to agree on a revised repayment
schedule. The unpaid interest of the loan as at 31
December 2016 was included in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016. Certain assets are
pledged as securities for the on-going litigation
(see Notes 12(d), 13 and 20).

The following assets and their respective
carrying values as at the end of the
reporting period are pledged to secure the
Group’s bank and other loans:

Notes to the Financial Statements
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23 RITRHEHMER (H)
(b) FEEMHRPBTERIFWT : (F)

Hrat - (&)

(i)  AEERLFEEA L 12550,000TTHIHE 1R
EFR -—FE—ANF+-_A=1—H#EH tFEE
BEBHREEE THE LR A E T 15 &N (EE
B o AL A|E EEZAELEE FiGEE
BT W EANEETRVE N R K o R=ZF—N
F+ = F=+—HZEHBRTFEFAAFEE
BE—F—NFE+ = H=+—HIFFEMHEE
B o B TEEARFEICEFAMEI B
Hia (BH1aE12(0) ~ 13K 20) -

() TIEERANREBRZREAED EFER
AEERTREMERZER

2016 2015
—EB-RF —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
Property, plant and equipment 1% ~ iE k& (FizE12)

(Note 12) 75,316 26,233
Lease prepayments (Note 13)  FEFAE K (KizE13) 11,484 11,761
Trade and bills receivables B 5 EUGRIA K KRS

(Note 18(a)) (Pt 18()) 19,920 14,422
Pledged bank deposits B IR IRTTIE 3% (HIFE 20())

(Note 20(i) 428 -

107,148 52,416

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s banking
facilities amounted to RMB52,400,000 (2015:
RMB20,000,000) were utilised to the extent of
RMB52,400,000 (2015: RMB12,000,000).

d R-ZE—XRE+-_A=+—H KAEHFE
RITRIEBEE AR 52,400,000t ( ==
—h4F: AR#20,000,0007T) 28HA
R #¥52,400000( Z— T —HF: AR®
12,000,000 7T) °
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25

(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

SECURED NOTES 24
On 3 June 2015, the Company issued secured
notes (the “Notes”) with an aggregate face value
of USD20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB122,352,000) to Chance Talent Management
Limited (“Chance Talent”), a third party. The Notes
bear interest at 13% per annum, payable semi-
annually, and will mature on 3 June 2017. The Notes
and the convertible bonds issued on 3 June 2015
(see Note 25) are secured by 505,581,818 ordinary
shares (the “Pledged Shares”) in the Company
owned by Century Investment (Holding) Limited
(“Century Investment”), an equity shareholder of the
Company.
As detailed in Note 34(b), the Notes have been
redeemed by the Company on 13 January 2017.
CONVERTIBLE BONDS
25
The Group’s convertible bonds are analysed as
follows:
At 1 January 2015 RZE—HF—A—H
Convertible bonds issued B #1TAI#RES
Accrued finance charges ~ AFEEETHIIBSER (K7 7(a)
for the year (Note 7(a))
Interest paid SERENESE
Exchange adjustments e 3, 8 28
Fair value changes THETABHNF
on the derivative BEEE) (i 7()
components (Note 7(a))
At 31 December 2015and  W=ZT—AF+-A=1+—H
1 January 2016 k=—F—R"F—H—H
Accrued finance charges ~ AFE TS ER (K7 7(a)
for the year (Note 7(a))
Interest paid [SERENESE
Exchange adjustments BEE 3, 8 28
Fair value changes THETASBH N FEZE (Hi7()

on the derivative
components (Note 7(a))

At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+-_A=+—-H
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BIRHRERE

RZZE—RAFAA=ZH AQFREBRA—RBE=
77 Chance Talent Management Limited ([ Chance
Talent]) % 17 [ {& 42 88 /5 20,000,000 3% 7T (4 F R
AR ¥122,352,00070) FEFRHE(RE]D - T
BIRFEFEAZ%RETE  B¥FIRE—IX » WKRZ
T—tHFNA=ZHFH RZZE—HFA=HE
T2 RAIBRRES (RMTE25) LA R Gl #ERAR
F Century Investment (Holding) Limited ([ Century
Investment ) # & 2 505,581,818 B AN A &) & i I%
([HEIRRR 1D |) VEBHEIR o

P EEB4(D) PRI - RBEER T —tF—A+=

HEARRED -

R ES
REBABRBEZSINT

Liability Derivative
components components Total
=L giba) PTET A #ct
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT R ARET R
54,328 4,950 59,278
5,810 - 5,810
(4,159) - (4,159
3,449 4,841 8,290
- 11,190 11,190
59,428 20,981 80,409
12,166 — 12,166
(8,738) - (8,738)
4,179 1,374 5,553
- 26,586 26,586
67,035 48,941 115,976
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26

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)

On 3 June 2015, the Company has issued two secured
convertible bonds with face value of USD6,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB36,706,000) (“CB1”)
and USD4,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB24,470,000) (“CB2”) to Chance Talent. Both
convertible bonds bear interest at 13% per annum and
will mature on 3 June 2018. CB1, CB2 and the Notes
(see Note 24) are secured by 505,581,818 ordinary
shares in the Company owned by Century Investment.

Upon issuance of these convertible bonds, Chance
Talent can convert CB1 into the Company’s ordinary
shares at HK$1.06 per share (i.e. the conversion
option) and CB2 into the Company’s ordinary shares
at HK$1.50 per share (i.e. the conversion option)
at any time from 3 June 2016 till 3 June 2018.
The conversion options are classified as derivative
financial instruments and have been included in the
balance of the convertible bonds in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group’s convertible bonds are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants as stipulated in the bond
instruments. At 31 December 2016, the Group has
not fulfilled certain of the financial and operational
related covenants, and accordingly, the convertible
bonds have become repayable on demand and
have been classified as short-term liabilities. On 27
February 2017, the Group and Chance Talent have
reached an agreement, where Chance Talent agreed
not to demand payment as a consequence of the
above matters before the original maturity date of 2
June 2018.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which
was adopted on 28 June 2010 whereby the
directors of the Company are authorised, at their
discretion, to invite any full-time or part-time
employees, executives, officers or directors (including
independent non-executive directors) of the Group
and any advisors, consultants, agents, suppliers,
customers, distributors and such other persons who,
in the sole opinion of the directors of the Company,
will contribute or have contributed to the Group,
to take up share options at HK$1 to subscribe for
ordinary shares in the Company.

On 3 October 2016, 80,000,000 share options were
granted to directors of the Company and employees
of the Group under the above share option scheme.
All the share options granted will vest after one year
from the date of grant and will mature on 2 October
2019. Each share option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company at
HK$1.41 and is settled gross in shares.
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R-ZE—RAF/A=H ' NXAFE R Chance Talent
BT D EED B 46,000,000k 7T (HERARE
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% 4,000,000 2 7T (K9F R AR 24,470,000 7T) B K
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26 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 26 RZEEFURDA/ERNTS (HF)
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) The term and condition of the share (@) FIRBERENERRGEDT :
options granted are as follows:

Number of Vesting Contractual life
instruments condition  of share options
TAZH BRI B A 2
Share options granted to directors:
RTERNBRE -
— On 3 October 2016 45,000,000 One year from the 3 years
date of grant
—-RZZE—RF+H=H B BT — 5 34
Share options granted to employees:
RTEEMBRE -
— On 3 October 2016 35,000,000 One year from the 3 years
date of grant
—-RZZ—RF+H=H B BRI — 5 3%
Total share options granted
RO M BRERR 80,000,000
(b) The number and weighted average (b) BREHAERMEFLGTEENT :
exercise price of share options are as
follows:
2016
=
Weighted average
exercise price Number of

HK$  share options
INEEFII1T(R(E BAREZ B

PETT

Outstanding at the

beginning of the year REYIARITE = =
Granted during the year RERFEL 1.41 80,000,000
Qutstanding at the end

of the year RERRITE 1.41 80,000,000
Exercisable at the end

of the year RERATITE = =
The share options outstanding at 31 December RZEB—RETZA=+T—HRITEREREL N
2016 had a weighted average exercise price BT EER1.NB TR TR IETEE 48 A
of HK$1.41 and a weighted average remaining 2.8%F °

contractual life of 2.8 years.
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26 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 26 EREEURGCAERNRS (H)

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value of share options and () R=B—AREFE+A=ABRHNEREAFLER
assumptions for share options granted on 555
3 October 2016

The fair value of services received in return
for share options granted is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of the
share options granted is measured based on

PSR H B B R 1 2 B it P MR B AR 75 2 AP 1B
TS EMRELBRENATERE - AR
BREN R FEERE _HEARREEEEA
£ - BRENSHFHAEREA @AM
% - HIRFITENBERHAAZERZA -

Binomial Option Pricing Model. The contractual
life of the share option is used as an input into
this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the model.

Fair value of share
options and assumptions

Share options granted on
3 October 2016
RZFE—NF A= AR E

BIRELFERER

Fair value at measurement date RErE BN A FEE HK$0.6527 — HKK$0.6644
0.6527 77T — 0.6644 87T
Share price A& (B4 HK$1.41
1.417%7T
Exercise price 116 (E HK$1.41
1.41 87T
Expected volatility (expressed TEARR g (e —1a = HAkE
as volatility used in the modelling EBEIN NHET AT Y
under the Binomial Option Pricing BIRHIR)
Model) 74.946%
Option life (contractual life used R B (Z 18 ARde
in the modelling under the EBRI T HREU LA A A 2.997 years
Binomial Option Pricing Model) BHIEHY) 2.997
Expected dividends TEETAR B & 0.00%
Risk-free interest rate (based on ERRF R (BB Tis SRR
the yields of Hong Kong W =G E)
dollar swap curve) 1.010%

The expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted with a service condition.
There were no market conditions associated with the
share options granted.

TE R IR B B 1R 08 CRREAERRR T hnaE F 15 58
REE)FE - RAFAESNERBLRIK R E
IR B IEHAE - AR ERERNBERER

8o THHARBBRRNESAH R FEMBFEK
BEAFE -

B AP & IR IS R MH IR I - PP O RB AR A L T
SRS -

BESHEMERAT —T AFEEHL @
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27 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(a)

The components of deferred tax

(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

assets and liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the

year are as follows:

At 1 January 2015

Additions through acquisition
of a subsidiary

(Charged)/credited to the
consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income
(Note 8(a))

At 31 December 2015
Credited to the consolidated
statement of profit
or loss and other
comprehensive income
(Note 8(a))

At 31 December 2016

Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited

27 EEHEEERARE

(@) RESHBRAREIZECHEEEHEERF
HARNRERZESEMT :
Assets Liabilities
BE aff
Fair value
adjustments
on property,
plant and
equipment,
lease
prepayments
and
intangible
Imparment ~ assets and
losseson  subsequent
Unrealised tradeand  depreciation
profit for Unused other and
inventories taxloss  receivables  amortisation Total
¥ BER
R Bl
HEFER
BEE
BaR ZAYE
RER AR RN BENRAR
{3yl WEEE EAEER  WEREH a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RZZ-HE—A—A 890 - - (745) 145
BRNE-ANEARRE
- 10,099 - (6,479) 4,620
(M8t AGaER
REAMZENRER
GEEE))
(890) 16,171 - 983 16,264
RZEB-RF+-A=1-H - 26,270 - (5,241) 21,029
STAGEBRRELM
2EYEE (1 8(a))
- 14,234 9,933 1,295 25,512
RZ_E—rF+-A=1—H - 40,504 9,983 (3,946) 46,541

Annual Report 2016



27 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of deferred tax assets and
liabilities recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position:

Deferred tax assets recognised
in the consolidated statement
of financial position

Deferred tax liabilities
recognised in the
consolidated statement
of financial position

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(r), the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of unused
tax losses and temporary differences of
RMB1,058,324,000 at 31 December 2016 (31
December 2015: RMB1,002,017,000), as it is
not probable that future taxable profits against
which the losses and temporary differences
can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity. The unused tax
losses at 31 December 2016 will expire on or
before 31 December 2021.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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27 EEHEEERAE (H)

(b) SEMBRARABRIANELEHHEEREE

RiFE M BEARRAERLZ
B AEE

KA MBI RNHER
BEERIARE

GEEE

2016 2015

—g—xE  —ET-AF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR  ARETE

50,487 26,270

(3,946) (5,241)

46,541 21,029

() FERWELHALE

RIBHI T 20) B & SHEOR - N EA BB

ALEMER A - BB KA REA A R FE R B £l
LAIRSE AT B B 2 B TE B I8 R E R =58 - U
EER B ANFE+-A=+—BXEHRRE
PR T 18 N 8 B = 58 A R 1,058,324,000
T(ZZE—AR"AE+ZA=+—"8: ARK
1,002,017,000 70 ) FERBLEFRIBEE - R
—ANE+TZA=1t—8  AIHAHREBEER
—E-—E+-A=t+—B=HZAER °

BESHEMERAT —T AFEEHL @
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28 PROVISIONS 28 5

Provisions for financial guarantee contracts issued

BRI MM SRR A R A

RMB’000
AREF T
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—A"E—H—H =
Additional provisions made {E BRI NE M 30,965
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE+ZA=+—H 30,965

As mentioned in Note 19, the Group has provided
guarantees for bank loans drawn by the Kaifeng
Changfeng Group, a previous subsidiary of
the Group disposed of on 20 May 2016. The
aggregate principal amount of the bank loans is
RMB30,000,000 and had matured on 21 July 2016.
The Kaifeng Changfeng Group has notified the
Group’s management that these bank loans have not
been repaid as of 31 December 2016. The Group’s
maximum exposure arising from these guarantees
would be RMB30,000,000 plus accrued interest. As
of the date of this annual report, the directors of the
Company estimate that there is a high probability
the Kaifeng Changfeng Group will not be able to
repay these bank loans. Accordingly, provisions of
RMB30,965,000 in this regard have therefore been
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Group has not recognised any deferred income
in respect of the above guarantees as their fair values
cannot be reliably measured using observable market
data and their transaction prices are RMBNIl.

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB - UARETR
29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 29 EX - #ERERE
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) HEZIFOHEFH
The reconciliation between the opening and REBGEERSHEDRFYI N FRESGZE
closing balances of each component of the BRE 4R T&/\ """" %ﬁ% KX B A7) B A R R
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the BEf SRS 2 HEEFHN & -
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
Shares held
Share Share under share Capital  Accumulated
capital premium  award scheme reserve losses Total
RERHRE
k& RitEE  HEEENRS B ZitEE &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
(Note 29(c) ~ (Note 29(c)(i) (Note 29(d) ii)
(Heooe)  (hi&roo)) (Ff=E 29(c) i)
Balance at 1 January 2015~ R=Z-HE-F-AfisH 53,560 599,296 (1,627) 226,982 (685,171) 293,040
Changes in equity for 2015 R-F-RENERSE:
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FABERZARALE
income for the year - - - - (265,046) (265,046)
lssuance of sharestonew AR EAERRRES
equty shareholders of i
the Company 37,498 119,466 - - - 156,964
Issuance of shares on SN
acquisiton of a subsidiary ARG 7499 68,376 - - - 75,875
Shaesgrantedunderthe  RERHEERERN
share award scheme MR - - - 1,772 - 1,772
Shares vested under the RERR R R
share award scheme b - - 1627 (1,772) 145 -
Balanceat31 December ~ R=F-T%+=F
2015 St-AlEs
98,557 187,138 - 226,982 (850,072) 262,605
ERSHEEERATE
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290 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 20 EA - HERRE (H)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) =TS (F)
(continued)
Share Share Capital  Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
R B3R E EXfE ZitER b
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTR ARBT T ARBTR ARETR
(Note 29(c)) (Note 29(d)(i))  (Note 29(d)(i))
(£ 29(c)) (KisE20()i) (Pt 29(dl) (i)
Balance at 1 January 2016 ~ R=B-A~f
—R-RiEe 98,557 787,138 226,982 (850,072) 262,605
Changes in equity for 2016:  R=E—-A~F
HEREE .
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREERZA
income for the year WA B - - - (79,509) (79,509)
Issuance of shares BATRM (MFE29(0)i)
(Note 29(c)i)) 9,652 234,132 - - 243,784
Shares granted under the share 1B TRk IE=+2]
option scheme (Note 26) bl e
(MzE26) - - 11,073 - 11,073
Balance at 31 December 2016 R=E—~f
+=B=+-A
ife o3 108,209 1,021,270 238,055 (929,581) 437,953
(b) Dividends b) RE
(i) Dividends payable to equity (i) ESEQTEZRREEERFEENRE

(i)

shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

The directors of the Company do not
recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: RMBNIil).

Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial
year, approved during the year

The directors of the Company did not
recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014: RMBNIl).

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 29 EAX - HERRE(H)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Share capital (c) B=X
() Issued share capital (i) BEITERAX
2016 2015
“E-RF “T-RF
No. of No. of
shares shares
RHEE BRINEE
’000 USD’000 ’000 USD’000
Th S Fhx S =
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary shares of FRAE0.01ET
USDO0.01 each TR 5,000,000 50,000 5,000,000 50,000
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hfF
No. of No. of
shares shares
RHEE BingE
’000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
TR AR®TxT Tk AR%®TT
Ordinary shares of ERTREHERZRH
USDO0.01 each, EREE0.01ETZ
issued and fully paid: ~ ZEK :
At 1 January W—F—H 1,532,727 98,557 800,000 53,560
Shares issued to new TP AR RS
equity shareholders R 2 B 1n
of the Company - - 610,606 37,498
Shares issued on FUE—HH B AR
acquisition of Bk
a subsidiary - - 122,121 7,499
Shares issued BRI
(Note 29(c)(ii) (FfE29(c)(i))
138,888 9,652 - -
At 31 December W+=A=1+—H 1,671,615 108,209 1,582,727 98,557

BESHEMERAT —T AFEEHL @
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(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Share capital (continued)

(i) On 12 December 2016, the Company
entered into a placing agreement with
a placing agent, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to place, through
the placing agent, a maximum of
291,218,000 new shares to independent
placees at a price of HK$1.98 per share.

On 29 December 2016, one placee, namely
Taiping Trustees Limited, subscribed for
138,888,000 shares in the Company.
USD1,389,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB9,652,000) of the proceeds was credited
to the Company’s share capital. The remaining
proceeds, net of transaction costs, of
USD33,689,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB234,132,000) were credited to the
Company’s share premium account. All of
the proceeds, net of transaction costs, were
received on 6 January 2017.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium
The application of the share premium
account is governed by Section 34 of the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands.

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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(c)

(d)

IR (48)

(i) R-FE—RE+-_A+-B ALQFEH
—HEERET IR EHH it &
REIRBEBZEERERBEE R

B 291,218,000 B #TA% (0 T I8 3 & B
A v B EER1.985TT ©

R=ZFBE—X"F+=-—A=1+hB —RBEEA
(BVKFE=-EHEBR A A]) 7R 138,888,000 A% A
NaM o FT{SEIE 1,389,000 £ 7T (KI5 A
R 9,652,000 7T ) i ARG HIARAS © 82 AT
B 3IE (Fk R B AN ) 33,689,000 F T (45
RARKE 234,132,000 7T) 5F AZNA BB 34
BERE - TBEATSHE (BRI SKA) R
—tF— A/XBUKER -

REZHEREN

i) RHEE
PRABRMGEERTRAESHEE)FE2E
RAPE(—AARN—FE=ZED] - BERA
MAEET) F 34 IREE -



29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Capital reserve
At 31 December 2016, capital reserve
comprises the follow:

- the portion of the grant date
fair value of unexercised share
options granted to directors of the
Company and employees of the
Group that has been recognsied
in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based
payments in Note 2(q)(ii); and

- the changes in equity arising from
the group reorganisation took place
in 2008 and 2009.

Surplus reserves

In accordance with the articles of
association of the subsidiaries of the
Group established in the PRC (excluding
Hong Kong), these subsidiaries were
required to set up certain statutory
reserves and discretionary surplus
reserves, which were non-distributable.
The transfers of these reserves are
at discretion of the directors of the
respective subsidiaries. The surplus
reserves are utilised for predetermined
means upon approval by the relevant
authority.

Other reserve

The balance of other reserve comprises
the difference between the consideration
paid and the carrying values of the non-
controlling interests acquired by the
Group in prior years.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(d) EEzZMHEERENGE)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

ENE
R-Z—RFE+-_A=+—R  BEXfHF
BB THE

—  BREME2(q)) R B AR R B
LR (KRN R ST B R
BT ARREERAEEREE MR
THEBERRAERA I B EAR A T (E 26
i R

~ R-FENER-TTAFRTE
BB AR YRR BE -

BERfEE
BREASERPBE(TNBEERE) KL
MM B R R A ERAR - ZFH B
RBVARME TEE R MEBEBSRH
B ZERBASTAENIK ZE5HE
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(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher equity shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio.
For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined
as total debt (which includes bank and other
loans, secured notes, convertible bonds, and
trade and other payables) plus unaccrued
proposed dividends, if any, less cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits and proceeds
receivable for issuance of shares. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity,
less unaccrued proposed dividends, if any.

During 2016, the Group continued to make
efforts to improve the adjusted net debt-to-
capital ratio. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group may issue new shares, raise
new debt financing or sell assets to reduce
debt.
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 29 EBEX - RERBRE (HE)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Capital management (continued) (e) EXREE (M)
The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital AREBR-_ZSE—XRNER_ZT—F0AF+_A8
ratio at 31 December 2016 and 2015 was as =t HZEARFAEHERLENT ¢
follows:
2016 2015
—E—RF —T—RHF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARET AREFIT
Current liabilities: MENEE
Trade and other payables 8 5 Kk H A FERFIE 22 159,511 150,924
Bank and other loans RIT R EAME K 23(a) 195,665 171,904
Secured notes BIERFEE 24 141,161 =
Convertible bonds AR ES 25 115,976 =
612,313 322,828
Non-current liabilities: e e UN=E=g
Secured notes HEARE - 128,271
Convertible bonds AT AR ESH - 80,409
Total debt HRIETS 612,313 531,508
Less: cash and cash equivalents & : 384 RIREEEIER 21 (90,002) (195,632)
Less: pledged bank deposits B IR TR 20 (461) (53)
Less: proceeds receivable for 5 1 FEURERITRRID HOFT1S 5K 0E
issuance of shares 18 (246,352) -
Adjusted net debt BREEETRHE 275,498 335,823
Total equity R 86,613 72,091
Adjusted net KARFEEHERLE
debt-to-capital ratio 318% 466%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries RN T EH B A 7 B8 9N i hN ) A AN 38
are subject to externally imposed capital EFTIRRE o

requirements.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the
Group to manage these risks are described below.

(@) Creditrisk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers and debtors requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s and debtor’s past history
of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer and debtor as well
as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer and debtor operates.
For trade receivables arising from the Group’s
E-commerce business, cash before delivery
is generally required for all customers. Trade
receivables arising from the Group’s axle
business are generally due within three to four
months from the date of billings. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers and debtors.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer or debtor
rather than the industry in which the customers
and debtors operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At 31 December 2016,
29.4% (2015: 56.0%) and 84.0% (2015:
79.7%) of the total trade and bills receivables
was due from the Group’s largest trade debtor
and the five largest trade debtors, respectively.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Group as set out in Note 28, the Group does
not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
trade and other receivables are set out in Note
18.

Liquidity risk

The treasury function is centrally managed
by the Group, which includes the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of
loans to cover expected cash demands. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following table shows the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the end of the reporting period) and the earliest
dates the Group can be required to pay.

Trade and other payables
measured at amortised cost
Bank and other loans
Secured notes
Convertible bonds
- liability components

BEAZEE
AIRRE SR

— AR
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EE AT ENE S
Ko E Ao PR RIR
RITREAMMER

BT ER 2R Y 5

(FRZAERBS - AARESITR)

PHEREERESHM T AENDFE(E)

(@) fFEEREE)

BRASEE S R EMRYIAREEEE
e E B 3 TR B R BNIRE 18 ©

(b) RBESER

BB AEETRER - BFEESRHBRH

RHKRE  AREBEER

NimeBHREH

Ko AEENBREZETHERRDESHTR
R EHRZAEEITIER - ERER RARE
s EXZomlBimRETnORER
B KMEMNEMEEERDESRE

TRINFAEERBFERRREORERRAS
mE(BRERAQN XN (WETEE)NERE
HAR B9 3R B K RSt B9 M B AN 50 st BB IEDT
EERAENRISREOMR - URAKEARE

BAEFANREES -

2016
—E-REF
Contractual
undiscounted
cash outflow

EHRTHRASRE
Within 1
year or on Carrying
demand amount
—FR
REER SREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR¥ET T
98,802 98,802
206,680 195,665
147,758 141,161
82,897 67,035
536,137 502,663
ERSEEEARAT

—B-AEEEHE @
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 BXREREERSBMIENATEE)

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBESER ()

2015
—E—RF
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHFRITRRE R

More than  More than
Within 1 1 year but 2 years but

yearoron lessthan  less than Carrying
demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
— M

i T = = I V0 of
FRER  MEUT  AFUT B KREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARBETT ARBTT

Trade and other TR SHRK AR

payables measured FENESR

at amortised cost Hfth SRR 97,585 - - 97585 97,585
Bank and other loans RITRHEME R 177,156 - - 177,156 171,904
Secured notes BHEAZE 16,883 138,314 - 155197 128,271
Convertible bonds AR ES

— liability components —AEHy 8,442 8,442 69,157 86,041 59,428

300,066 146,756 69,157 515979 457,188
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FI=mE B

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily NEBNFREAE ETERETEET o JFEF]
from interest bearing borrowings. Borrowings RYEENEREXDEAERATRERE
issued at variable rates and at fixed rates T ZEE e K& A EF R -

expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 BXREREERSBMIENATEE)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (c) FAEEPE(E)
() Interest rate profile (i) FI=ER
The following table details the interest T 3R A AN 5 B A R B R A 8 BRI 3R
rate profile of the Group’s borrowings at B ©
the end of the reporting period.
2016 2015
ZB-RE “E-hf
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
ERFI= ERFIE
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT
Fixed rate borrowings: ~ EIERI=MER :
Bank and other loans RITREMET 0%-~13.0% 128,265 0%-~13.0% 74,504
Secured notes BERZE 15.33% 141,161 15.33% 128,271
Convertiole bonds-liabilty Al EH —BEHH
components 18.8% 67,035 18.8% 59,428
336,461 262,203
Variable rate borrowings: ZEFIRER :
Bank and other loans RITREMER 5.49%~6.65% 67,400  4.9%-7.0% 97,400
Total borrowings BRAE 403,861 359,603
Fixed rate borrowings B RIZMEF1E
as a percentage of EReEat
total borrowings 83% 73%
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2016, it is estimated
that a general increase/decrease of
100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’s
loss after tax and accumulated losses
by approximately RMB674,000 (2015:
RMB974,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates
the instantaneous change in the Group’s
loss after tax and accumulated losses
assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to
re-measure those non-derivative financial
instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. The impact on the Group’s loss
after tax and accumulated losses is
estimated as an annualised impact on
interest expenses of such a change in
interest rates. The analysis is performed
on the same basis as 2015.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales, purchases and borrowings
which give rise to receivables, payables, loans
and cash balances that are denominated in a
foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which
the transactions relate. The currencies giving
rise to this risk are primarily USD and HK$. The
Group manages this risk as follows:

(i) Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of receivables, payables and
borrowings denominated in foreign
currencies, the Group ensures that the
net exposure is kept to an acceptable
level, by buying or selling foreign
currencies at spot rates where necessary
to address short-term imbalances.
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(c)

(d)
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A EBRRE DR A REEHE RS
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown
in RMB, translated using the spot rate at
the end of the reporting period.

Cash and cash equivalents  BHE&RRESEEE

Trade and other receivables & 5 & EL it EUFA

Trade and other payables &5 R EME(IFE

Secured notes EERZE

Convertible bonds HRRES

Gross exposure arising ERREERARE
from recognised EAREREE

assets and liabilities

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(d) EHEEEE)
(i) ERNEEER
TRAMAEENRERARAUNEAE
B EK N EBIENEBRE
EXBEMELENERRR - &7 #TT
5%k - 75 B R 5 BB B A R 45 HA R B AP
ERTE  LUARKIIR -

2016 2015

ZE-AE “ZE-1F
usb HK$ usb HKS$
EYH BT e BT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETRr ARETT ARBTR
74,103 10,830 181,432 5,248
72 246,469 21 -
(2,105) (13,696) 2,712 (2,099)
(141,164) - (128.271) -
(115,976) - (80,409) -
(185,067) 243,603 (29,939 3,149
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 HMHEMREEREMIANATE(E)

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (continued) (d E¥EkE(E)

(iii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the (i) BERMEDN
instantaneous change in the Group’s loss TRYRERFZFTA A AR E EE R
after tax and accumulated losses that g AEERREHREEERNEmME
would arise if foreign exchange rates to HHMEARBREAEBKRFEEEBERENR
which the Group has significant exposure FTESRE MBI EE) o

at the end of the reporting period had
changed at that date, assuming all other
risk variables remained constant.

2016 2015

“E-RE “T-0fF
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/  (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in loss after (decrease) inloss after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange accumulated exchange  accumulated
rates losses rates losses
BRBEER BRiEEE

Exts/ REGER EXLR/ RIEHER
(TR i/ (H2) (TFe) i/ (i)

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R AREFT

UsD £ 5% 9,303 5% 1,907
(5%) (9,303) (5%) (1,907)

HK$ BT 5% (12,180) 5% (157)
(5%) 12,180 (5%) 157
Results of the analysis as presented in RO ER AU AEBE R T EIZARE
the above table represent an aggregation M BT EMBRIREZERE i ER
of the instantaneous effects on each L EMEIRE R EEEE - Wt 25 IR R ER

of the Group entities’ loss after tax LEHASK A TE R 5 A RS o

and accumulated losses measured in
the respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period for presentation purposes.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (continued)
(iii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that
the change in foreign exchange rates
had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting
period, including inter-company payables
and receivables within the Group which
are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currencies of the lender or
the borrower. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2015.

(e) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value
of the Group’s financial instruments
measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs,
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement
date.

Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS 3R R B 5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B BB » AARESR)

30 UHEREEREMIANATEGE)

(d E¥EkE(E)
(i) SRS (E)
BRI D IR E FEAE RSB E 5T
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs, i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

= Level 3 valuations: Fair value
measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

Recurring fair value REMEAFETE
measurement
Financial liabilities TEIAE

— Derivative components
of convertible bonds
(Note 25)

During the year ended 31 December
2016 and 2015, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2016

30 UHEREEREMIANATEGE)

(e) AFEE(H)
(i) ULAFPENENESREENARS(H)

DREZH(H)

- HFRHE: ABRFE-—RBARE
(BDER 25 — AR R E SN A R B= 8 A
2R ENMERBEETABERBA
IR B AF(E - TrIEER AR
IRIEEAN T IS EIBERG AR
%

-  FEAME: AREETAEES
ABBEFERTE

Fair value measurements
categorised into Level 3

— AR EEMSTA T AED
(FfzE25)

PEA=EER
WAFEE
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARETTT
48,941 20,981

REBEE-_ZE—RER-_ZT—HF+_-A
—t+—HLEFE F-HEFE_H M
I R e WS = AR A o
REBZBRTYARERTEENRS
HIRMER AT ESH 2 M2 = -



30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

Derivative components of
convertible bonds
AARE SR PTE S D

The fair values of the conversion options
embedded in the convertible bonds are
determined using binomial lattice model
and the significant unobservable input
used in the fair value measurement
is expected volatility. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated
to the expected volatility. As at 31
December 2016, it is estimated that
with all other variables held constant,
an increase in the expected volatility by
5% would have increased the Group’s
net loss by RMB812,000 (2015:
RMB1,260,000), whereas a decrease
in the expected volatility by 5% would
have decreased the Group’s net loss by
RMB544,000 (2015: RMB1,279,000).
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(e) AFEE(H)
(i) ULAFPENENESREENARS(H)

ERE=RLFEHTENER

Significant
Valuation unobservable Weighted
technique input average
BEANA
hERN  EBRGABE ke
Binomial lattice Expected 50.91%
model volatility
ZIAA EEAR TR IR

GRS - ON: Ok & A NS - DEE S
Ao-BEAREEAEE  mMAFETE
T B 2 8 KA ] B 52 i A\ B0 5 TE 2R
g o A EF=HEBH RIS EFHEE
Be R —_ZE—ARE+-_A=+—8"
WATE MBS ERSTE  FEHKR
EF5% B AL EEEFREE A
R#812,000c(ZZE—HF: ARK
1,260,000 7T) * T8 HRR 8 T F& 5% #5:E
BAREE R ERFERD AR 544,000
T(ZE—RF : ARK1,279,0007T) °

BESHEMERAT —TAEEEHL @



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 53R 3R M5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B BA#BAIN © AAREEFIR)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 FXRREERSMIANATEE)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e) AFEFE(E)
() Financial assets and liabilities (i) UAAFEFENSREENERS(HE)
measured at fair value (continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value BEE=RNFEFTENER (F)

measurements (continued)

The movements during the year F=RMATENELEHRNFTASBIT ¢
in the balance of Level 3 fair value
measurements are as follows:

2016 2015
— —EhHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Derivative components AR EFNITETERS :
of convertible bonds:

At 1 January R—A—H 20,981 =
Addition through issuance i 1B 37T AT R AREHR N

of convertible bonds - 4,950
Changes in fair value FANERERN A TEE

recognised in profit or

loss during the year 26,586 11,190
Exchange adjustments PE 57, 5 1,374 4,841
At 31 December R+=—RA=+—8H 48,941 20,981
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 FXRREERSMIANATEE)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e) AFEFE(E)
(i) Fair values of financial assets and (i) YFRAFEIRNEHEERSEN

liabilities carried at other than fair
value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values at 31 December
2016 except for the following financial

AT

R-_ZE—XRF+-_A=1+—8 '  A&H
TS EESEA BR S Bt T ARE
EEEQANTFTEITEEAZE  HEUATE
BET AR EEREERAFEREAF
EERFENT :

instruments, for which their carrying
amounts and fair value and the level of
fair value hierarchy are disclosed below:

2016 2015
ZE-RE “F-h%
Fair value Fair value
measurements measurements
at 31 December at 31 December
Carrying  categorised Carrying categorised
amount into Level 3 amount into Level 3
Bt=h ®+=A
=t-R28 =+-H5E
BE=RH BE=RH
REE NPEE RME AYEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETR ARETT ARBTT
Liabilities 8
Secured notes (Note ()) ~ BIEAZLE (& () 141,161 136,075 128,271 122,262
Convertible bonds akES
- liability components —REEs (FE()
(Note (i) 67,035 62,398 59,428 56,142
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 UBEMREERESMIANAFEE)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e) AFEFE(E)
(i) Fair values of financial assets and (i) YFRAFEIRNEHEERSEN
liabilities carried at other than fair NFAE ()
value (continued)
Note (i): Valuation techniques and inputs used in Kiat () - BE=RRFEFZELT A EFRN R 5
Level 3 fair value measurements AZE
Secured notes and convertible bonds- EHE I b AR R (3 — B (25
liability components
The fair values are estimated as being NG5 B T A 58 7T i Fl &
the present value of future cash flows, I I S B (BT A o
discounted at current market interest
rates for similar financial instruments.
The Group used the risk free interest N [F] 52 B TR R —
rate with reference to the Hong Kong E—NEA = H =1 — [ AR G FE
government bonds and treasury bills DI EEEAR - BB EHAE A A
as of 31 December 2016 plus credit BHEEEM BB E  BR—FE—
spread of comparable notes with similar Ff— A=+ —HEHHFZHER o1 5R
credit rating, coupons and maturities BEL B EES 5 o BRI FI R 0
to discount the secured notes and the T
liability components of the convertible
bonds as of 31 December 2016. The
interest rates used are as follows:
2016 2015
ZE-KRF —T—HF
Secured notes BHEHRE 21.711% 19.57%
Convertible bonds AR ES — &S
— liability components 23.711% 21.57%
31 COMMITMENTS 31 RIE
(@) Capital commitments N o
At 31 December 2016, the outstanding capital (a) ﬁﬁf?g%_ —A=+—0  kREABE
commitments of the Group not provided for ié%géﬁé’j\i’;—;1%#%257%%}%?;?": o
in the consolidated financial statements were i NE = a '
summarised as follows:
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T ARBFIT
Commitments in respect BEEER —HEH B A R &AIE
of investment in a subsidiary
— Contracted for (Note (i) — B ETA (BT () 100,000 —

Note (i): Pursuant to an agreement ended into between
the Company, via a subsidiary, and three
independent parties on 29 November 2016, the
Group is committed to make capital contribution
of RMB100,000,000 into a new company to be
established by the above parties.
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COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Operating lease commitments
At 31 December 2016, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are payable as

follows:

Within 1 year 16K

After 1 year but within 5 years 1518 1B5FR
After 5 years 5% 1&

The Group leases certain office premises under
operating leases. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the material related party
transactions entered into by the Group during the
year are set out below.

(@) Transactions with the equity shareholders
of the Company
Details of guarantee provided by the equity
shareholder of the Company for the Group’s
secured notes and convertible bonds are set
out in Notes 24 and 25.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(b) REHEERRE
RZB—RE+ZA=+—H  BRETAHE
RERERNOARRRERSERERNT

2016 2015

— —E-hHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREBTT
6,016 5,940
9,397 2,024

- 47

15,413 8,011
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRSHE A - MARKETIR)

32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 32 EXRBEIRZ (&)
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(b) Key management personnel remuneration (b) FAREIEASEEN
Remuneration for key management personnel, ARSI A BH M (BFEMzE 9 i T Xt T2
including amounts paid to the directors of the AREZMS AR F10AHES T &= 5
Company as disclosed in Note 9 and certain BE)WT :

of the highest paid employees as disclosed in
Note 10, is as follows:

2016 2015
A —ET-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Short-term employee benefits 4G HA(E B &7 5,610 4,618
Contributions to defined M AR RGRRET IR
contribution retirement plans 86 118
Equity-settled share-based BRI SR
payment expenses in respect S EEUARG A
of share option scheme B 7 MR
(Note 26) (MI7E26) 6,228 -
Equity-settled share-based BRI ZENETEIR
payment expenses in respect EREELARRGD A
of share award scheme A2 N - 1,772
11,924 6,508
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33 THE COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF 33 ALQTHEEMRRE
FINANCIAL POSITION
2016 2015
—E-XE —T—hHF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BizE ARETT ARETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries NG IEYNEI S =) 16 92,441 161,651
Loans to a subsidiary BERTHIB AT 332,976 311,693
425,417 473,344
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A R NG 28,748 27,918
Other receivables H {th pE W zkIE 246,824 =
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEER 23,876 28,053
299,448 55,971
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASTFT B R R 5RIE 18,640 40,996
Other payables E At 5RIE 11,135 17,034
Secured notes BEBRE 24 141,161 -
Convertible bonds Al E S 25 115,976 =
286,912 58,030
Net current assets/(liabilities) BREBEE(AE) 12,536 (2,059)
Total assets less current liabilites RAEERABEE 437,953 471,285
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Secured notes BIEAEE 24 - 128,271
Convertible bonds AR ES 25 - 80,409
- 208,680
NET ASSETS RPEE 437,953 262,605
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRRf#E 29
Share capital &N 108,209 98,557
Reserves e 329,744 164,048
TOTAL EQUITY BERER 437,953 262,605
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of HEFER _Z—tF=-A -+ _A#tERKET
directors on 22 March 2017. o
Cheng Jerome Yuan Weitao Cheng Jerome =RES
Director (Chairman) Director EE(FE) EF

BESHEMERAT —TAEEEHL @



Notes to the Financial Statements

LR ST E e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

34

35

(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(@ On 6 January 2017, pursuant to the placing
agreement entered into by the Company as
described in Note 29(c)(ii), another placee,
namely Beijing Enterprises Real Estate (HK)
Limited, subscribed for 151,515,000 shares
in the Company. USD1,515,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB10,404,000) of the
proceeds has been credited to the Company’s
share capital, and the remaining proceeds,
net of transaction costs, of USD36,769,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB252,482,000)
have been credited to the Company’s share
premium account. Upon the issuance of
these shares, the Company’s issued and fully
paid ordinary shares have increased from
1,671,615,000 to 1,823,130,000.

(b)  On 13 January 2017, the Group has redeemed
all of the Notes (see Note 24). On 15 March
2017, 396,238,156 of the Pledged Shares
have been released.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The directors of the Company consider the
immediate and ultimate holding company of the
Company at 31 December 2016 to be Century
Investment, which is incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce financial
statements available for public use.
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36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS, 36 HE_E—ARF+-A=+—HLFEEDBRMHE

AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a few new standards and
amendments to standards which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2016 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements.

BREROITTRA - BB TRRRORER

BEAMBHRERTEBMAL  HESMLSE
BHREBE_FT—R"F+_A=T—BLEFEHK
EREE TR R R EANERT - BRI 5wk
A Eﬂiﬁé% c ZEFRABETI A EENEEFR
HZER o

These include the following which may be relevant to
the Group.

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after
AR5 B Bigk 2 1& IR HY
FREHMER

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flow: Disclosure initiative
BBEEEAE 7% (1B5]K) - HenExk « HE7E

1 January 2017
N =

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes:

Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses
EEGAERIE 1258 BRTAR) - e/ -

PR BB IR R R B

1 January 2017
—Z—+tF—H—H

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
ERBYIRELERE155 - KAFEFEAIZHA

1 January 2018
—T—N\F—H—H

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

BREUHREEANEOW A TA

1 January 2018
—Z2-N\F—H—H

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment:

Classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions
BB mEERZFE 258 (BFIAR) - URGBEBZTH -

KRG BEBZ (TR B R ZE

1 January 2018
- N\F—H—H

HKFRS 16, Leases
ERVBREERFE 165 HE

1 January 2019
—E—-hF—H—H

BESHEMERAT —TAEEEHL @
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36

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments and new standards is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far the Group has
identified some aspects of the new standards which
may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected
impacts are discussed below. As the Group has
not completed its assessment, further impacts may
be identified in due course and will be taken into
consideration when determining whether to adopt
any of these new requirements before their effective
date and which transitional approach to take, where
there are alternative approaches allowed under the
new standards.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework
for recognising revenue from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will replace the existing
revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue, which
covers revenue arising from sale of goods and
rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specifies the accounting for revenue
from construction contracts. The Group is currently
assessing the impacts of adopting HKFRS 15 on
its financial statements. Based on the preliminary
assessment, the Group has identified the following
area which is likely to be affected:
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36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

(a)

Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies
are disclosed in Note 2(t). Currently, revenue
arising from the sales of goods are generally
recognised when the risks and rewards of
ownership have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when
the customer obtains control of the promised
good or service in the contract. HKFRS 15
identifies 3 situations in which control of the
promised good or service is regarded as being
transferred over time:

()  When the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the entity’s performance, as
the entity performs;

(i) When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in
progress) that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced;

(i)  When the entity’s performance does
not create an asset with an alternative
use to the entity and the entity has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities
do not fall into any of these 3 situations, then
under HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue
for the sale of that good or service at a single
point in time, being when control has passed.
Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
is only one of the indicators that will be
considered in determining when the transfer of
control occurs.

Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS 3R R B 5
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36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS, 36 HE_E—ARF+-A=+—HLFEEDBRMHE

AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)
(@) Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

As a result of this change from the risk-and-
reward approach to the contract-by-contract
transfer-of-control approach, it is possible that
once the Group adopts HKFRS 15 some of the
Group’s contract manufacturing activities that are
currently recognised at a point in time may meet
the HKFRS 15 criteria for revenue recognition
over time. This will depend on the terms of the
sales contract and the enforceability of any
specific performance clauses in that contract,
which may vary depending on the jurisdiction in
which the contract would be enforced. It is also
possible that for the remainder of the Group’s
contracts the point in time when revenue is
recognised may be earlier or later than under
the current accounting policy. However, further
analysis is required to determine whether this
change in accounting policy may have a material
impact on the amounts reported in any given
financial reporting period.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in Note 2(i), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently,
depending on the classification of the lease. The Group
enters into all the leases as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly
on the way that lessors account for their rights and
obligations under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16
is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject
to practical expedients, lessees will account for
all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the
lease the lessee will recognise and measure a lease
liability at the present value of the minimum future
lease payments and will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this
asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-
use asset, instead of the current policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases on
a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical
expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this
accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where
the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of
low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses
would continue to be recognised on a systematic
basis over the lease term.
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36

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s
accounting as a lessee of leases for properties,
plant and equipment which are currently classified
as operating leases. The application of the new
accounting model is expected to lead to an increase
in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the
timing of the expense recognition in the statement
of profit or loss over the period of the lease. As
disclosed in Note 31(b), at 31 December 2016
the Group’s future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases amount to
RMB15,413,000 for properties, most of which is
payable between 1 and 5 years after the reporting
date. Some of these amounts may therefore need to
be recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding
right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted.
The Group will need to perform a more detailed
analysis to determine the amounts of new assets and
liabilities arising from operating lease commitments
on adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking into account
the applicability of the practical expedient and
adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated
between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the
effects of discounting.

The Group is considering whether to adopt HKFRS
16 before its effective date of 1 January 2019.
However, early adoption of HKFRS 16 is only
permitted if this is no earlier than the adoption of
HKFRS 15. It is therefore unlikely that HKFRS 16 will
be adopted before the effective date of HKFRS 15,
being 1 January 2018.
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5-Year Financial Summary

AEPBRE

RESULTS
Revenue

Loss before taxation
Income tax (expense) credit

Loss for the year

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

ES
WA

BRIEATE R
Pt (Fs) R

FAEIE

BEERARE

BEMRE
BEHE

BEHME

Year ended 31 December
BZE+t=-A=1t—HILEE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—T—F ZT=fF —TMNF —T-HF =ZT-xF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTRT ARETT ARETT AR¥TR
(restated)

(#E5))
503,841 429,795 336,928 170,355 385,468
(459,635) (227,410) (409,202) (631,217) (265,879)
(1,103) (645) 270 16,264 25,512
(460,738) (228,055) (408,932) (614,953) (240,367)
At 31 December
B+=A=+—H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—E_F —T—=F —TMF _—_T-—HF =ZFB-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETRT ARETT ARBTT AR¥TxR
(restated)
(FE5))
1,764,871 1,581,581 1,017,913 776,118 733,837
(664,656) (709,421) (584,685) (704,027) (647,224)
1,100,215 872,160 433,228 72,091 86,613
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